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CONTINUED HEARING

VOLUME II

BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday, the 2lst
day of May, 1975, beginning at 8:30 o'clock p.m., in the
0l1d Supreme Court Room, State Capitol Building, Austin,
Texas, the above-entitled matter came on for hearing,
having been continued from Tuesday evening, May, 20, 1975,
before the HOUSE SELECT COMMITTEE ON IMPEACHMENT, the
HONORABLE L. DeWITT HALE, Chairman, presiding, and the
following proceedings were reported by Hickman Reporting

Service, 504 Travis Building, 205 West 9th Street, Austin,

T

Texas 78701.
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WEDNESDAY, MAY 21, 1975

SECOND SESSION

i
i
)
i
|

(The hearing was reconvened at 8:30 p.m., ;
j

pursuant to the recess on Tuesday, May 20, 1975.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Committee will come to!

i
t

order.
The Clerk will eall the roll.

(The Clerk called the roll.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: There {8 a quorum present.
Members of the Committee, Mr. Canales has
asked the Chair that we issue three additional subpoenas,
which the Chair has in hand, one for Francisco Ruiz,
one for Oscar. Sanchez, and one for Octavio Hinojosa, Jr.
. MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, if I can
indicate to the Chair there, on the one for Mr., Octavio
Hinojosa 1s a subpoena duces tecum alsgo.
CHAIRMAN HALE: VYes, {t is. Are these
witnesses, 1 understand, here now, Mr. Canales?
MR, CANALES: Yes. They are sitting
right here oﬁzﬁhe front row.
CHAIRMAR HALE: They are here, present.
What is the will of the Committee on the

subpoenas?

MR. NABERS: I move that they be 1issued,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



.

6

~d

12
13

14

Mf. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr., Nabers moves that the
Chairman be authorized to issue in the name of the
Committee subpoenas for the three individuals named,
the one for Mr, Octavio Hinojosa being a subpoena deces
tecum for certain records, Is there any discussion on
the motion?
| , (No response.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: All those in favor of
the motion will vote "aye," those opposed will vote
"no as your names are called.
The Clerk will call the roll.
(The Clerk called the roll.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: There being nine ayes and
no nays, the motion is adopted.
Mr. Kelly, will you:tnke these three subpoenas
and serve them on the witnesses.
Mr. Mitchell, let me say to you and to Judge
Carrillo, I'm sure I mentioned {t the other night, that
as you know, the Committee does have subpoena power and
we wog%d certainly exercise that power in behalf of any
witnesses that you care to call in the same way we would
for Mr. Canales. o
MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN HALE: If there are any records

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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or witnesses that you can't get here that you want and
can be reached only by subpoena {f you'll advise the
Chair I will éertainly recommend ghac the Committes
grant such a request.
Mr. Mitchell, let the Chair also state that

I'm not sure that you understood it from our previous
conversation that while this i{s, as the Chair stated
yesterday; aot a prcsecution, and as a result we don't
anticipate éross examination in the courtroom sense, if
there are pertinent questions that you feel should be
asked some witnesses, Lf you will advise one of the
members‘of the Committee we willvtry to see that those
questions are asked.

MR. MITCHELL: May I then request that
Mr. Cleofus Gonzalegz be recalled because I do have some,
Mr. Chairmanf |

CHAIRMAN HALL: If he is available we will
get him., I don't know if he is still here or not.

MR, CANALES: He {8 available, Mr. Chair-
man, 8and still under subpoena.

CHAIRMAN HALL: All right. Fine.

The Chair would ask, {f you would, Mr. Mitchell,

to—perhaps it might be better if you're going to have
very many questions {f you could prepare them in advance

and submit them to us. Then we will be happy to scece that

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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those questions are asked.
Is there any other business to come before the
Committéegbefore we start hearing additional testimony?

‘(No response.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, will you call

your first witness.
MR. CANALES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
My first witness this evening will be a Mr,
Ruben Chapa, a resident of Duval County and, among other

instances, will testify to one instance that is very

clear in his mind which occurred in November of 1974 when

Mr. O. P, Carrillo and Mr. Ruben Chapa went to the old

City Hall and picked up a backhoe, a piece of equiphent

belonging to the county, which is a tractor type arrange-

ment. From there they went to the front of the Adigai

Pary High School. At that point Mr. Tomas Elizondo

drove up &n a county truck with & trailer and the
backhoe was loaded. From there it was taken to Bortas
Ranch, which'has.bean indicated to be owned by Judge
0. P, Carrillo. And the}backhoe was used to load gravel
and sand into a cement mixer to make a foﬁndation for a
buiiding on the Bor§as Ranch, or on the property belong-
ing to Judge O, P, Carrille.

At that éime, Mi. Tomas Elizondo operated the

backhoe and he was an employee of the county.

. HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



additionaily, on that same day & truck, a

two and a half tom truck, went to the Farm and .ch

Store, or a combination Farm and Ranch 8 tore, Precinc:

3 wﬁrehouse, and plcked up 8 substantial amount of
conerete which was taken and used in building this
foundation.
At this time I would prasent to the Comwm. :tee
Mr. Ruben Chapa;_
| CHAIRMAN HALE: All right, Mr. Chapa.

MR, CANALES: Mr. Chapa will testify to
thia narticular incident,among others, but this one is
the most vivid in his mind at this time.

- CHATRMAN HALE: Mr. Chapa, it is my duty
as Chairman to advise you of your rights with reference

to your testimony. You will be sworn to tell the

. truth and your failure to do so could subject you to a

prosecuﬁicn for perjury.

After you have comple:ed your statement,
members of the Committee may ask questions concerning
your testimony. You must answer these questions
truthfully and your refusal to do so could subject you
to punishment for coantempt. You can refusgse to answer
questions only on the grounds that such answers might
incriminate you or tend to incriminate you in some way.

You are privileged to have an attorney of your

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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sclection sit with aand advise you &8 to your amswers Lf
you deoira, The Chair will actempt to protect your
righto at all times.
Do you understand the advice I have givaen you?
. MR. CHAPA: Ye¢s, sir.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you ready to testify
at thiec time?
MR. CHAPA: Yen, sir.
CHAINMAN HALE: Would vou stand, please,
ond paise yau:_righe kand and be sworn.
(The witness wvas sworn by the Chalrman
ot this tico.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: You may be seated.

MR. RUBEER CHAPA

was colicd go o witness on behalf of the Author and,
haviag booa duly aéorn, tootifled as follows:

CRAXRMAN HALE: Plcoase state y@uk name
and eallisg addrons, if you will, plcase, for the rocord.

A Rubcn Chapa, Box 265, Benavides, Tonos.

CHAIRMAN HALX: Banavides, Tonas. Fine.
If you have o propared statement you wish to moke you may
procesd. Or, Mr. Concles, if you want to do it in
question aad aaover form you way prococed,

HR, CARALES: Thork you, Mr.Choirman,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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DIRECT EXAMIRATION
"BY MR. CANAI:ES.

Q Mr. Ruben Chapa, would you state for this
Committee your occupation?

A I'm the owner of a Texaco Service Station there
fin Benavides.

| Q How long have you lived in Benavides, Mr.
Chapa?

A All my life., 27 years.

Q Mr. Ruben Chapa, I would take you back to the
time when we Interviewed and asked you to relate to
this Committee the events which occurred in November of
1974 and would ask you to relate to them those events
as they pertained to the backhoe incident.

MR. CANRALES: I would ask, Mr. Chairman,
if the entire Committee knows what a backhoe is, or else
1'11l go into an explgnation of what it is.

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chairman doesn't
know. So—

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, a backhoe is
8 type of tractor which in the baek has an arm type

apparatus which is used for digging holes. You see them
frequently being used by the Water Departments and what
not to dig trenches with. And they are somewhat like a

shovel, except thoy are hydraulically powered.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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Chapa -~ direct 2-11

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you, sir.
Could I make a caxiection?
Yes.
It was November of 1973,

Okay .

> 0 P O >

Instead of 1974,

Q Go ahead and tell the Committee, would you
please, sgir?

A On November of 1973 I was riding with 0. P.
in his car and we went to the city hall, the old building
thefé in Benavides. We picked up the backhoe. Tomas
Elizondo drove it over in front oY the high school, the
Adist Pary High School.

Q | Kr. Chépa, may I interrupt you. To whom did
the backhoe belong?

A The backhoe belongs to the Duval County
Cons 2rvation and Reclamation Districr.

Q Thank you., Continue, please.

A From there we took {t— Tomas Elizondo—took it
over to the front of the high school. Later on he went
and got a truck. I guess it belonged to the County; it
had an exempt License on it, with a trailer. We loaded
it on the trailer, connected everything, and we went
over about, I would say, sixteen, eighteen miles from

there, to Bortas Ranch. That is on Highway 16.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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' Mr. Chapa, let me interrupt you 6ne more time.
Mr, Tomas Elizondo, do you know this man personally?

A Yes, sir.

Q How long have you known Mr. Tomas Elizondo?

A All my life.

Q At the time that the county-owned truck and
trailer arrived at the old, or in front of the Adlai

Partr High School to pick up this backhce that belonged

"to the Duval Water District or Conservation and Water

District, in whose employ was Mr. Tomas Elizondo at that
time?

A The County, I guess. Duval Ccuﬁty.

Q Would yoﬁ go ahead and proceed.

A From there we loaded the backhoe, like I said,
and we got over to the Bortas Ranch on Highway 16.

Q Let me igterrupc you. To who does Bortas
Ranch belong?

A It belongs to District. Judge 0. P. Carrillo.

Q Go ahead.,

A From there we unloaded the backhoe that im
front it's got a scoop also, a two yard scoop, I guess it
is. They used it to—Tomas Elfzondo was the one that
was driving it. He was loading the gravel.and sand to be
poured into a cement mixer that they were making a

foundation for a building or a store or, I don't know

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
: AUSTIN, TEXAS
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what they were‘geing to do, but it was a foundation that
was being built,

Q - Let me {nterrupt you again, Mr. Chapa, and
ask you who was operating the backhoe machinery, this
piece of machinery?

A Tomas Elizondo was.

Q Is it the same Tomas Elizondo who you said was
at that time working for the county?

- A Yes, sir.

Q Thank you. Go ahead.

A The truek that came over to town, that two and
a half ton truek, 1 guess belongs to District Judge 0. P

garrillo, came over to the Farm and Ranch. The boys

,opened the ﬁarehﬁuaé there that I guess belongs to

Precinct 3 and got some sacks of gemant. I doa!t know
i€ the cement beleaged to the caunty or who 1t belonged
to, but it was loaded and taken ba&k to the ranch.

Q  Mr. Chapa, do you knaw which part of this
establisghment 1s in fact the county or the precinct
warchouse?

A On the back of the ﬂafﬁiénd Fanch.

Q And that is the place from which the cement was
loaded and ﬁakea avay from this precinct?

A Yes, sir.

~Q : Thank you. Go ahead,.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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A And then we Eobk it back and they were building
the foundation and there was a lot of help there. I
don't know where it came from or nothing, but I was
there. 1 was Just looking. 1 was not doing anything. i
I was just riding around with 0. P.

Q Let ‘me ask you sbout the quantity of cement
that was loaded. ’Were you present at the time it was !
being loaded?

A Yeg, sir.

Q Waé it one or two sacks, or did they load the

truck down pretty heavily?

A Pretty heavily. I can't say what amount becausé

they were not counting. They were just putting it there
in the truck.,

Q "Additionally, Mr. Chapa, I would like to ask
you if you knaw & Mr. Patricio Garza?

A Yes, sir.

Q Where does Mr. Patriclo Garza live, Mr. Chapa?

A In Benavides.

Q Do you know who Mr. Patricio Garza has been

vemployed with in the past?

A That I know, he works for the county. I
don't know what precinet. Probably Precinct 3. That's
the precinct we've got there in Benavides.

Q Let me clarify. Does he work for the county or

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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is he paié-;

CHAIRMAN HALE: Lat the Chaii interrupt
you just a minute. When you keep referring to the
"County," are we always talking about Duval County now
when we say the "County"?

A Yes, sir. Duval County.

CHAIRMAN HALE: AIll right. Thank you.

Q Let's clarify this point. Was he working for
the county or being paid by the county?

A He was being paid by the county because I've
seen him once or twice cash his checks, so I guess he's
being paid by the county.

Q Did you ever see Mr. Patricio Garza when he
was working?

A Yes, sir.

Where did he work?

At Q0. P, Carrillo's raach.

Do you know a Mr. Tomas Elizondo?

Yes, sir,

bhvieu>know a Mr. Tomas Elizondo today?
Yes, sir.

Where is he working today?

At 0. P. Carrillo's ranch.

Do you know who he is employed by?

> L O > O > O PO

Duval County,.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS




Chapa - direct

Q And Mr. Elizondo works on Mr. 0. P. Carrillo's
rahch?,
A I guess. He drives his truck every day and
he's got the trallers and everything every day.
MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I have no more
questions of this witness and would submit him as a
witness to the Committee.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. Thank you, Mr.,

QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE l/

BY CHAIRMAN HALE

Canales.

Q Mr. Chapa, when was this backhoe taken from the
Duval County Conservation and Reclamation District and
delivered to the ranch belonging to Judge Carrillo?

A When was it taken?

Q Yes.

A I cannot tell you the exact date, but it was
in November, I knoﬁ, of '73. But it was not taken from
the Duval County Coneervation and Reclamation District.

Q Where was {t taken from?

A ic wa# taken from the city hall. I guess they
parked it thgr? because— Why it was parked there, I
on't know"

Q  How large a plece of equipment is a backhoe?

A It's pretty big. 1It's like a regular tractor.

z-16

i

!
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- Q Is it the size of a pickup? |
A Somewhere around there. 1It's heavy. It's
heavy equipment. It had to be loaded on the trafler
because to go sighteen miles driving it at 20 or 25
miles an hour takes & long time €O get up there.
Q It does not have an engine of its own?

A Yes, sir, it does.

¢ ] Does Li¢? You can operate it without any other

equipment?

A Yes, sir. It's got a motor in it and every-
thing and you can—

Q How long did this backhae stay at the ranch o
0. P. Carrillo?

A From there I don't kuow, sir, because I was

there that doy. And it happens to be that I was there

_that day. 1 came back to Bénavides. I came back to my

station. From there on I don't know. I was most of the

d&y Ehere because I remember I ate there at the ranch.

Q &nd Tomas EiizZondo was with you while you

werse takinaki:_ﬁe the ranch? /

4  Tonmas Elizondo waert on the truck., I went with

District Judge O, P, Carrillo in his car.
Q Then tho three of you ware out there at the
ranch at the same time? |

A Yes, sir.

v/

£

e

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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Q And the backhoe was there at the time all
three of you were there?
A Well, we got it there at the same time.

Q At the same time. How did you and Judge

Carrlillo get out to the ranch?
A In his car.

And Tomas Elizondo was in a truck?

Q
A Yeg, sir.
Q

And he had the backhoe loaded oan the back of

the truck?
A Yen, sir.
Q Was anyone else out there at éhe'time?
A At the ranch?
Q Yes,
A Well, there were some school kids I guess they

hired or something to mix the cement or something. I

couldn't give you their nomes or how many were there.

But there were some other kids there that were helping
him. It was a weekend, I can recall.

Q All right. You testi{fied about some cement
being loaded. Was that loaded and delivered to the ianch
on the same day that the backhoe was delivered out there?

A Yes, sir. That cemont was—the truck came over
to town with the same kids that were at the ranch, went

over to the Farm and Ranch. We opened that warehouse that

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS.
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!

belongs to Duval County, we loaded cement from there and

we went back' to the ranch. And they were unloadin, the

cement. A8 they were needing the sacks, they were

unloading it. They didn't unload them all. They just

left them on the truck. As they were using them they

were unloaded.

Q
"wa”?
A

You say "We" went to the warehouse. Who is

I, myself, and I guess— I'm not too sure.

Yes. Judge Carrillo went over and he just told us to

load it, and he took off and then later on he came and

picked me up &gain and I went with him.

Q

A

o » o > o B

Was the warchouse locked?

Ko, sir.

Do you have a key to the warehouse?

No, sig¢., I dom't work for the county.

Was it during regular working hours?

It was a weekand. It was a Saturday.

It was a veckend. Who opened the warehouse?

I guess they all have keys. I don't know where

they got the keys from.

Q
A

Q

How did you get into the warchouse?
It was opon already.

It was already opened. Was anybody in the

warehouse at the time?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS
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A No, sir., It is just & room. It is just & room%

where they store thelr things; just a small room. You
can't store too many things in there.

Q‘ Do they keep it locked whem it's not being
used?

A Prohably they knew that they were going to go
pick up the cement and they unlocked it before. Maybe
his brother urilocked it or somsthing. I;don't know.

- Q Mr. Canales asked ydu about sumeone named
Patricio Garza. Was he involved in taking the backhoe
or the cement out therel? |

A No, sir, No, sir. He was at the ranch.

Q Was he out there az,the same time that you and
Tomas Elizondo were out there that day in November?
When we got back over there at the ranch?
Yes, sir.

Yép, sir.

What was he doing out there?

> 0 > O B

He was there and then he went to the ranch

and I guess he went and cooked for the boys and everychin%

out there. He's usually the one that!cooks when there
is some work going on or something.

Q Did'yaﬁ eat while you were out there?

A iea; sir. ‘

Q Which meal did you eat?

!
i
g
i

|

g HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



8

10
11
12
13

14

15

t6

unapa ~ airect

I

A I can't recall.
Q Was it the noon meal or an evening meal?
A The noon meal.
Q The noon meal. How long were you ocut at the
ranch that day?
A Like I say, 1 stayed there till about two
or three o’éiéck. I can't recall. I came back to
Benayides and ‘I attended to my business. I was there at
the station.( |
Q All right. You say "station."”
A Texaco.
Q Is that a Texaco station that you own and.
operate?
A Yes, sir.
Q :Have you ever been employed by Duvai County?
A No, sir.
Q Have you ever been employed by the Duval

County Conservation and Reclamation District?

A ?es, sir.

Q When did you work for them?
A I'm sti11ll working for them.
’Q You're on the payroll now?

A Yeé, sir.

Q How long have you worked for the Duval County

Conservation and Reclamatiom District?

2-21
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A I started last year in April; April the first
of last year, '74, until right now.

Q What work do you do for the Conservation
Distriet?

A I'm the Business Office Manager. I'm in
charge of the people, tell them where to go, what to do,
what work has to be dome. When there is a leak of
wvater, sewage water, I mean sewers leak or something,

I send them over to do the job.

Q Are you paid a regular salary for that work?

A I'm patd $700 a month,

Q- $700 a month?

A Yes, s8ir.

Q Is that considered a full-time job or do you
just work'at it part time?

A I'm there at the office and then I go check
the people, and I'm around there.

Q In addition to that, you run this Texaco

Service Station?

A I have some workers at the station.
Q sir?
A I've got workers at the station, that they runm

my station. After 5:00 I'm there at the station.
Sometimes I go through there and see what they need and

then I come back,

{

i
I
t
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~Perez., He is from La Rosita, Texas, And Gab Raymond

Q IWho employed you to go to work for the Duval §
County Conservation and Reclamation District?

A Let me see. Leopoldo Sepulveda. He is the
General Manager.

Q Is thé Duval County Conservation and
Reclamation District governed by a multi-member board

that's elected?

A Yes, s8ir.

Q Do you know who the members of that board are?
A Right now?

Q Yes, sirx.

A The President of the Board is Gape Raymond;

the Secretary 1s F., H. Canales; and the other members are

Romexro Herrera. He iz from Reslitos, Texas; and Felipe

and F. H. Canales are from Benavides.

Q Five members on the Board?

A Four.

Q Four membars on the Board. 1Is the Canales
that’'s a member on the Board any relation to Representa-
tivé Terry Canaleg?

A I don't know.

Q Do.you &naw if any of the members of that Board
are related to Judge Caorrille?

A No, sir. They are not related.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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-

Q Do you know if any of the wembers of that Board,

are related to Terrxy Canales?
A I don't know.
Q You dén't know. All right,
Did anyone assist you in getting tha job?
| A No, sir. I asked for a job and they gave me
that job.

Q You didn't go to anybody else and ask them to
take you down there and recommend you?

A | Nﬁ, slr. I asked for a job and they gave me a
job, s0 I'm still thers.

Q Have you ever been employed by Judge Carrillo?

A No, sir.

Q In any way?

A Iaﬁaa Just & close friend of his,

Q Have you ever been employed by any of the
partnerships, the businesses of which he is =& partner?

A No, sir.

Q I believe one of which was called the "Farm
and Ranch Store.”" Have you ever been employed by the
Farm and Ranch Store?

A No, ,s8lx,

Q Have you ever been employed by the Zertuche
General Store?

Q Where s the Zertuche General Store located?

|
1
i
i
|
|
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A I don't know it. Just by name, I guess. It is .

at the same building of the Farm and Ranch,

4

Q Do tﬁey have a sign out there for it?
A No.
Q What sort of merchandise does the Zertuche

Genoral Store have?

A I don't know if they have any merchandise.
I know Farm and Ranch had some merchandise there.
They had filters and all kinds of ¢dds and ends, you
know., Plumbing fixtures and everything.

‘Q Did you ever buy anything in the Farm and
Ranch Store?

A Yes, sir.

Q What?

A Oh, once I bought gomething for the commode
at the station and little stuff that I needed, you know.
Just little things that I neededvfor the station: paint
or something, you know.

Q Did you ever buy anything from the Zertuche

General Store?

A Hot thet I know of because I always paid

cash, or gave them a check.

Q  The Zertuche Genseral Store wouldn't take cash? |

A I never made a ticket. I never charged it. I

always paid when I went and bought something.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Q Well—
A in other worde, I never—when it was & ilittle

thing, you know, a fifty or sixty cents thing, why wouid
I ask for a slip or aomecping, cash ticket or something?
I didn't need one.

Q Maybe you dida't understand my question.

A Did I ever buy something from the Zertuche
General Store?

Q | Did you evar buy any mﬁrchanﬁise of any type

from the Zertuche Ganeral Store?

A I doa'’t even knew if the store existed or not.

)Q Did you asver buy anything from it then?

A fo, sig,

Q All right.

A How could I buy when they didn't hav§ aothing!
- qQ Are you a married wman?

A Yes, éir.

Q Do you have any cﬁ&ldren?
| A Yes, air.

Q How wany?

A Oné._ {

Q Have you ever at any time used any food orders

through Duval County?
A I don't need theﬁ. I work.

Q Or any governmental sgency there?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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{! A No, sir.
f; Q Food stamps?
éé A No.
gi Q Have you ever had occasion to use &ny county
E equipment?
i A Me?
Q Yes.

A No, sir.
‘CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney?

BY MR. MALONEY

Q Mr. Chapa, when did you say that the use of
this backhoe occurred?

A The backhoe?

Q Backhoe.

A In November of '73.

Q How do you recall tﬁat date?

A Becauge I had just bought my truck that month.
I bought a *74 GMC. It was brand mew. I can recall
because it was bhrand new. It was in that month.

Q How did you come to get in touch with Judge
Carrillo that day?

A We were close friends.
Q I beg your pardon. I'm sorry.
A We were close friende. 1 said "We were." He

ugsed to come to my station to get gasoline or something,
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and I would ask him “Where are you going?" and he would
say, "I'm going to the raach." '"What are you doing?"
“Well, doing this." I would just hop in the car and go |

with him. I always used io do that.

Q Is that what you did on that occasion?

A Probably I asked him or probably he teld me
"Do you want to go?" or something. I can't recall.

You know, so many times I'm with him, you know. About
every othar &ay. or I would see him every day. He would
go to my station every day.

Q On this date that we're talking about, you're
telling the Committee then that he came by your station?

A 1 sayw him there at the station, and I got in |
the car with him,

Q  All xight. He was in his car?

A He was in his car.

Q Was anyome with him?

A Tomas Elizondo was with him. Later on we came
back to town. We went to the ranch, came back to town
and picked up that backhoe like I told you. When we
went to the ranch I came back to town with Judge Carrillo
and 1 picked up my pickup in town, and I went to the
ranch in my pickup?

Q@ Why?

A Because like that I could come back whenever I

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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w#nte& to.
Q But why did you go back to the ranch?
A To the ranch? Because {t was about noon time
and I was'gotng to eat.
At the Judge's ranch?
Yes, sir.
Was Tomas Elizoando over there?
Elizondo?
At the ranch?
Yes, sir.
What was he doiug there?
He was operating that backhoe.

Did you do any work there?

O > L0 Lo > o > L

No, sir. I was just looking.

Q I’believe you said that this was a weekend.
Is that correct?

A It was a weekend. |

Q Waa it part of Tomas's duties to work on the
weekends for the county?

A I don't know. I gee him work every day.

Q Do you know whether he was paid for his work
on the Judge's ranch? |

A I don't know.

Q You said that you had bought thiags from the

Farm aad Ranch Store. Is that correct?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A Yes, sir, I have,
Q How recently have you done that?

A Welk, not too long ago I just went to the

Farm and Ranch and I needed a part for my tyailer house

that I bought, It was closed. So I went over and asked

Ramére Carrillo's son, that's Ramiro Carriilo, Jr., that

I needed & part for my traller because I knew he had

some parts at the store. He said, "I can't go over

He was that homest. He gave me the key and I went, looked

for the part and I couldn't find it. Since thea I
haﬁen't. you know, I havea't baen there but I can't =
when I bought somathing.

Q How about priocr to March of 19747 Had you
bought anything from the Farm and Ranch Store?

A In March of 19747

Q Correct.

A I don't think so. HNo. No, I have not,

Q All during thisrtime, you're a native of
Benavides. 1I: that correct?

A Yes, sir,

Q And you had never previous to March of 1974
bough&-éaything at the Farm and Ranch?

A You'rs talking before or after?

Q Before.

 because I'm babysitting, soc here's the key to the store."

ay
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A Before March of '747
Q Cérrect.
A Oh, yes. I said a while ago that I had bought

some parts, I thought you said—

Q Do you recall who you bought them from?

A Cleofus Gonzalez.

Q You do know Cleafus.Geuzaiez?

A Yes, sir.
- Q You were buying from the Farm and Ranch Store?
A I guess it was the Farm and Ranch.

Q And he waited on you?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did. you pay him?

A Yes, sir.

Q what did he do with the money ¢

A He had & big cash register there. I guess he

opened the cagh register, marked, you know, the price of
the item, and put the money in there, and that's it.
VICE CHAIRMAN MALONEY: That's all that
I have. Thank you. |
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Slack?
BY MR. SLACK
A You said the man that operated the backhoe
wasﬁTomas? |

A His name is Tomas Elizondo.
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Q 8 he normally employed by the county or by
the Judge on his ranech? Where was his normal place of
employment?

A Employment?

Q Yes. Whare did he work? where did Tomas work? |
Did he work for the county?

A Ea'gat paid by the county. He was at the
Judge'’s ranch most of the time, or somewhere around
there in toun.

Q So far as yﬁﬁ know, you dom't know who his
normal ampléyér Qas? Was he on the county payroll so far
as you know, or did he work for the Judge on the ranch?

A I don't know if'he vwas on the county payrolil
or if he was by c¢laim.

Q By claim?

A it's & claim that I guess they've got them for
people that work & week or two or month, or something
like that'and;'yan know, they make a claim for payment.

MR, CANALES: I would like to interrupt
just & second. ‘Thasé are different from the county
payroll. This is what a claim f{a. They are put in, in
this manney., Thare may be a distinction I'm not familiar
with but I was informed that this is a claim and that it
is different from a county pay check,

MR, SLACK: I sece.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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 Assistant or the Deputy County Auditor here who will

tax payer's money.

MR. CANALES: That does not cover Mr. ;

-

Elizando, not Tomas Elizondo, at least.

MR. SLACK: It does not, so far as you

know?

MR. CANALES: No. That is Roberto

Elizondo, a brother or half-brother.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Counsel, let the Chair
ask you on these claims then. They are handled on a
contract basis rather than an gmployee-empioyer basis?

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, we have the

testify as to the employmeunt, and he is more in a position
to explain the differences betweea a county check and the
county claim, or whatever. I'm sure he can clear it up
to the Committee's satisfaction.

CHAIRMAN HALE: But it all comés out of

MR. CANALES: Oh, yes.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Okay.
MR. CANALES: The root of all evil.

Q | One more question, please. How did you know
that the backhoe, the tractor with the backhoe attach-
ment, balonged to the county?

A It didn't belong to the county.

Q It belonged to the Water District?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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the man that was-—the operator, you know, the regular

BY MR. HENDRICKS

A The Water District., Duval County Water
District.

Q How do you know that?

A Because one time I asked them for it because
I needed to do a job and told—

Q You gsked the Water District for it? ;

A No. I asked Guadalupe Ruiz, because he was

operator that was employed—he is atill employed by the
Watex District. He told me that D. C. Chapa had said
that he;didn't want for that backhoe to be loaned to
anybody. So I said, "Well, thank you very much." Aad I
knew it belonged to the Water District because Guadalupe
Ruiz {s employed by the Waéer District and he was the
one thot used it most of the time for waé;r leaks and
everything. | |
Q Thank you.

MR, SLACK: I have no further questions,
Mr. Chairman, |

CHAIRMAN HALE: HMr. Hendricks?

q Mr. Chapa, 1 believe you stated that you did
not knovw whethor Judge Carrillo also paild those men in
addition to thoir county employment. Is that correct?

A I‘den't know if he paid them or not. I couldn't

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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teli>you.,
Q Have you ever seen them working on his ranch
at any time other than weekends?
A Yes, sir. During the week.
Q You have seen them there personally during

the week working?

A Yes. Sometimes I would go with him, like I

told you, if they invited me or I tagged along most of

the time, whatever it was.

Q Have you ever seen them do work for the county?

A Not that I know.

Q What precinct did this cement belong to, if

| you know?

A I don't know if it belongs to countywide, if
it belongs to Precinct 1, 2 or 3 or 4. It might have
baen countywide. From there they could distribute chat
cenment to whatever precinct needed that cement. I
don't know.

Q I believe this barn was at the back of the

Farm and Ranch Store. Is that correct? The county barn?

A It's not a barn.
Q A storage bara, or whatever?
A It's a store and then it's got a shade on it

and then 1t's got like a storerocom.

Q Was the equipment belonging to the county and
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Ty

that belonging to the Farm and Ranch Store intermingled? |
A I couldn't tell you. '
Do you undexstand what 1 mean by that?

Yes. They were together at the same loc ation?

Yes. Right,

i
1
1
i

Yes. But I couldn't tell you which one belonged

> Lo > L

to the county and which one belonged to the—

Q Ié there any way you have of knowing whether
or not the cement belonged to the Farm and Ranch Store
or whether it beioanged to the county?

.A At one time they had said that there had been
& car load, a trainm car load, that was ordered I guess
by the county of cement. What they were going to do with
it, I don't know.

Q y Of'your own knowledge, is there any way you
know-——can you teil thiz committee—

A I_didu‘t‘work for the county. I dida't see
no—but like I telllfou, I had heard that the cement
was'tha county'’s end they had stored it there because
thé people from the county had to unload it from the
train, or eor 1&&8, or wvhatever you want to call it.

Q All right. Have you ever serviced county
vehicles at your aéxvice-aﬁation?

A They would spend about-—are you talking about—

what pracinct?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Q Any precinct.

A I an still servicing some cars. The Sheriff's
Department car and the Precinct 4 car.

Q Héw are you paid for these servicec?

A By ipe county.

Q All right., How do they pay you? Do they
issue warrants for it?

A ﬁy check,

Q By check?

A Yes, sir,

Q ﬁo you turn in &8 voucher for it or how are you
paid?

A No. I give the bills to the Commissioner or
to the Sheriff's Department at the end of the month,
They take them and when they meet they approve the bilis,
I guess, and the County Commissioner that bought the
supplies there, the gasoline or whatever he bought, he'll
bring ﬁm his éheck or one of the deputics will bring me
tha Sheriff's Department's check. But thay haven't
brought them for two months because they haven't been
paying or something. I don't know what's going on.

Q This was uander the jurisdiction of Judge
Archer Paryr and the County Commissiomers Court. 1Is that
correct?

A what?
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Q

These are issued by the Commissiconers Court

and the County Judge. 1Is that correct?

A

Q
A

Well, the County Judge?
Yes.
Yes.

MR, CANALES: Mr. Hendricks, Archer Pary

has beea suspended from the Bench.

~

o P O OB L0 > Lo B H >

name ?
A

Q
A

Well, whoever is County Judge.

I guess Dan Tobin.

All right.

Since Dan Tobin went in I haven't been paid,
Rave you ever serviced Judge Carrillo's car?
Yes, sir.

How are you paid for this?

I don't sexvice them no morve.

How wewe you paid when you did?

Be kad 8 eredit card of his own.

Was the gredit card in his name or the county's.

0. P. Cat;illo.
He was billed direct for this?

If I would pay my gasoline with credit cards

then Texaco would send his bills &t the end of the month,

1 guess.

Q

Let me ask you this: HKas the Judge or his

" HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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brother, the Commissioner, ever cashed a county check or
a county voucher that belonged to somsone else at your
service station?

A Ro.

Q 0f your own knowledge, 1s this backhoe that
belonged to the Duval County—

A Water DPlstrict.

Q —Conservation District, has it ever been loanel

to anyone besides the Judge, of your own knowledge?

A When are you talking about?

Q Thé backhoe. Has it ever been loaned to any~
one besides Judge Carrilio?

A Right sow or——

Q T&e&.

A Then? |

Q  Back in November of 1973.

A  Like I told you, when I went and asked for it
thej told me that D. C. Chapa; he wae the President of
the Board, said that that backhoe could not be loaned ﬁo
anybody, that the boys could not do any work after four
with it. So they probably did bsfore, or acmething.

Q Was this before November of 1973 or after
November of 19737

A When I asked for it?

Q  Yes.

{
i
|
!
i
]
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It was before.

Before?

~ Yes, sir.

?r%of to the time you asked for the loan of it,

had you ever known of anyone borrowing it?

A

Q
A

Borrowing it?
Right.

The oﬁiy'ous that I would see after work on

the backhoe was that man Guadalupe Ruiz.

Q :

A

Who i he?

He is the forewan of the gang, you know, the

workers, fron the Water District.

Q
A

Q
A

From the Water District?
From the Water Department.
Was he doing private work with the backhoe?

He would ask for it and do it, somebody would

hove somathing to bo—you know, somebody had it to build

the line or somathing,:thoiwater iine, at theilf house

or something, and he would go and get five or_ten

dollars extra. I don't know if they paid him or not.

But you know, he wag-—

Q

Well, of your knowledge, did they pay him for

this wotk?'

A

I nevar saw anybody pay him because I would see

the tractor working after 4:30 ox 5:00, and what he was

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



viiapés ~ UiivCL , LS L

1

doing, I don't know.

Q But he's the one that told you they didn't loan|

the backhoe?

A Yes, sir.

Q Of your knowledge, do you know whether or not
Judge Carrillo in November of 1973 had permission to

use this backhoe?

A I don't know. His daddy was the President of

the Water Board. I guess he—

Q He was Praesident of the Water Board?

A Yes. I guess he could have loaned nim the
tractor. |
Q Who were the Board members in Novembexr of

1973, {f you know?
A I don't know. They change so often that I
don't know.,
Q Wﬁa was President of the Board?
A Hevwas;
MR, HENDRICKRS: I believe that's all I
have, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MAN HALE: Thank you, Mr. Hendricks.
Mr. Hjabg:s ?
BY MR. NABERS ._ |
Q How long have you been an employee of the

Conservation Digerice?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
' AUSTIN, TEXAS



11

12

13 -

14
15
16

17

18

19
20
21

22

— enm e et e W o -l

A Since April 1lst of '74 to right now.

Q So you weren't an employee when you asked if
i you could borrow the backhoe? |
A No. That was in '73 when I asked for it,.
; Q Did the backhoe have any identification on it,
to your knowledge, that would identify it as being the
backhoe that belonged to the Conservation and Reclama- |
tion District?

A Nome of the equipment that the Water District's
got that they had at that time had any identification.
When I went into the Water District I bought some stick-
ons with the name and I put one on about every— I'm not
s&ying all of :he_équipment, but I would say most of it.

Q Does the district still own that backhoe now?

A  Yes, sir.

Q Is the sticker on it now?

A( I guess they took it off because we painted it.
We putnted zhe backhoa; it needed some paint so we just—

Q There would have been & sticker on ft. You
did put a sticker on 1t?

A I put ome on itjand then I took it off because
we had to paiat it,

MR. NABERS: Thank you.
CHAIRMAR HALE: Mr. Kaster?
. MR. RASTER: Yeo.

!
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BY MR. KASTHER

Q Mr, Chapa, what gize truck was used at the Farm

and Ranch Store to load the cement? Was it a pickup?

A Two and a half ton pickup.

\‘Q ‘Two and & half ton? You don't kaow when you
were tgére if:any arrangements were made to buy the
cement? .You don't ‘know what arrangements were made on
the cement qther than éo Sust load {t?

A All T know is the front gates were opened

11, and the warehouse gate was open. That's all I know.

Q ,When you got there?

A _That's all I-knowy...
. > . e

Syt “\';:‘- 1‘&.» >
T A

L %’#ip & \ ‘
b B Q When you got there?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you don't know what arrangements Mr.
Carrillo had made to get the cement?

A No, sir.

Q Do you know if the ranch where you went to
work with the backhoe; is éhat in that Water District,
or do you know?

A What?

Q The ranch itself. Does that encompass part
of the Water District?

A 1 guess the Duval County Water District covers

all of the county, I guess.
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Q The whole county?

A It is supposed to., San Diego, Benavides,
Realitos, Concepcion, that I know, you know, that we
charge water to the people, except Freer, Texas. They've
got theii own water district. But I don't know if the
whole district under the whole county pays taxes to the
water district, to the Duv&i County Water District. I
don't know.,'lgcouldn't tell you that.

Q ,‘You aren't a member of the Water District, as
such?

A No. No, no.

Q Do you know if people that belong to the Water
District could borrow this backhéé on weekends when it
wvasn't being used?

A Like I told you, at that time I asked for it
and they wouldn't lend it to me.

Q But you said you weren't a member of the
water district.

A No.

- Q I'm asking you L{f you know 4f members of the
water district themselves could borrow the backhoe on
weekends when it wasn't being used? Apparently this
was a weekend. I mean, was it ever done before by any
other people? |

A Like I told you, that boy that worked for the

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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4

13 |

water district, that he would use it after work., I know

he was workiog with.the b&ckhoa;
Q Well, was ir ever used on anybody else's
raach or—
oh, no, Wo.
Where was he workimg? There in town?

There fe town. Theve in town.

LH b L >

But whose traller did you load the backhoe on?

A I guess Lt was the county's. It dida’t evea
have & Eic@ﬁ@é o it. The truck did have a license.

Q The &?aiiéw didn't go with the backhoe? Because
Eha# is pretly common to move a backhoe around to use &
trailerw.,

A& It 'was a high traller, you know, oue of those
big ones.

Q It wasn't é low tratiex?

A | It was not a lowboy or one of those with
ramps on it., We had to knock off the traller from the
truek to load the tractor up snd cie Lt with.ek@ias and
boome and eéverything.

Ie's like a cotton trailer or something?
It's a flat trailer with a steel bed on it.
A £1oa:? |

Yes, a float.

O B O > L

Patricio Garza and Tomas Elizondo who were at

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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the ramch, you don't know if Mr. Carrillo had separate
arrangements with them and these othexr high school kids
that you saw to help him build the foundation on the
weekendea?

A I don't know if he gave them an extra bonus
or vhatever he did, I don'’t kaow.

Q You don't kmow. But i¢ was on a wegkend aad

-]

they weégéee on duty apparently,

& e probably hired them. He probably told them,
"{'1il pay you so much & day to go and mix cemeng" or
somaething.

" MR. RASTER: That's all.
{Mr. Donsldson is now preseat.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Doisaldoon?
BY MBR. DORALDSONW

Q Is this the ouly occcasion ¢hat you have ever

choerved ony equipment from the Reclamatiom Distczict

being operated on Judge Carrille's ramch?
A The only equipment? That's about ail they

- had, you know. But equipment, that's about':ig what they

hed, 'gou know, The vest were plckups, twe or three
piekuﬁa. |

Q What abeutﬂgouneyvequipmena?

A I d4id see c§uncy aquipment there.

Q  vhat specifically?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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~or threc years ago. I couldn't tell you vhen. I kaow

| was a partition femes, you know. He had bought gome

A Well, once I saw—there is a truck that's got
one of—like the trucks from TP&L that's got that pa#t—

hole diggera. It was bought by the county I guess two

it's now. 1I've seen it there operated by Tomas
Eiizondo.
Q Thay weve digging holes with g9

& Yes, They were buildinmg a feuce. I guess it

"lﬁad~er‘agaﬁa&iﬁg.

Q ge 1 gﬁas@.&h@y wa%e_éigging post holee with
167 | |
| A_:* Yee;' Post holes 8o ﬁﬁay could %ﬁil& that fence
Q Is there enything oo that digger that identi-
fies it as county equipment? | |
& The licemse plate.
Q ~ The Rigense piate? Did it have a precinct
numbgr»@n ths sidég or anythiug?
A  Wo. They don't have saything.
Q But_yen knew it to beéu
A I kaew it belonged to the county.
Q —county equipment? Did you gee this on one
occasion or more than one occanion?
A Saveral.

Q Do you remember gbout what time period this

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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but I c¢an

or four months ago.
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F
Q
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Chapa - direct _ 2-48
That ccuidvbave beea from— I can't say the

say several occasions from 1973 until three//

Were you en Judge Carrillo’s ranmch oftent &

'3

i used to, befove.
Before whaea?
&pril the first of last year.

0f ‘747

Yoz, sir.

Prior to that time I believe you have

that you apd Judge Cavrilleo weva good frienmds?
Clege £riends.

And did you trevel with hiw & lot?

Yes, siz.

You went to his ranch with ﬁim a loe?

Yes, sir,

Did you ever go to the grucery astove with him?
Yes, asir,

Did you evar ses him buy groceries?

Yas, ai%.'

- Did you ever see him pay for groceries?

Wail, ehe lady would, you know, get the

adding machige, you know, and get the total. He would

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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sign the slip, you know, that came out from the adding
machine aad thet was ic.

Q He didn'’t pay cash?

A No.

Q He would aign a ticket for the groceries?

A ﬁa would sign a ticket. I even went myself.
He would suad we, you know, "Go buy some weat,” "Go
%ay gome eligaveties.” GCo buy chis, ¥ would sign the

tlckels nyoslisf.

Q . You presumed thet he was chargling them. Is
that right?
A ?es. You kaow, on top, when I would go myself

I would get his name ou top, you know, put "o, P.
Carrilio,” cigned "By Ruben Ch&p&,"
Q Are you familiar with these white food slipa?

A Welfare orders?

Q Welfere orders? De you kaow what they look like?

4 Yes. I've scen people use them, you kaow,
when they go to the doctor. 1've ssen Mr. Gomzales,
you kna@e give them to psople that sometimes they would
go theve tq his office and ask him for them. I happened
to be there because his office ie¢ in the same building
thm: I am ia. |

'Q ' b£6 yon ever se¢e Juége Cazyxiilo igsus any of

those in psymentfor groceries?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A Fo. 1 never saw him.

Q Do you knrow whethesr or not Judge Carrillo
ouns any caterpillars?

A 1 have seen some at his ranch., I don't know
who they belong to because my daddy is & welder.

Q Your dad iz a welder?

A ¥Yes, sir. And he would repeivr those buiid@m@ws:

for %i&@ and zekes snd whatever.

Q Wao dogs your dad work for?

A Belf cuployed.

Q You don't kmow of your own knowlaedge whaether
or zot Judge Carrilioc ouns any bulldosers?

A 1 don't kioow 4f he owas them or who owas them.
All 1 say %8 I saw them there. That's all. |

Q Do you know whether or not the Farm aand Ranch

Stere a@iéke@ﬂ@m&?

& 'cem@az?

Q gight.

& I den't kaow, |

G You mever had occasion o buy aay cement
 chere?

& ¥o. ?ﬁeré weée some people: that would come

somatimes and ask, yauﬁ§ﬁaw. if I had cement because the

rpeujlicecks would bring me some from the rigs. I would

aéil them, "I don‘t have amy but you can go to the Farm

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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aad Raach.” That's the only place people can go and buy |

things beeause there was nothing else there in town.

Q

0 9>

£

B o

¢

eiga "Rubeu Chapa® @2 a matter Of business, or do you

eign “R. Chapa™?

a

Yika Chapa®t
Q¢

A
Q

aot that was the same Chapa.

&

¢
A
Q

Just Ruben Chapa. That's all it is.

Your first name is Rupen?

Ruben.

What are your inftials?
{Laughteri)

Be you have & middie inicial?

fio.

I'm sovry. Okay.

(Laughtaer!)

Row- do you ordinarily sign your name? Do you

Are you talking about that ticket wight there?

Yes.,
Be i3 my uncle.

Okay. 1 was tryiag to determine whather or

Ho. He is g mechaniec for the schesl.
Por the school?
(The witness nodded.)

Have you ever signed any. tickets for the

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Benmavides Independernt School District, to your umemory?
'4 A Wae;tgat I k#ow of,
Q Have you ever signed any cherge tickets
to your knowledge at Zertuche General Storae?
A Ro. |
Q I believe you testified earlier that when you

bought merchandise——

A I paid cash.
Q@  You paid cesh.
A 8o there was no use siguniang asy tlckes.

MR, DORALDBON: OCould I get & sergeant

over here, @ie&aﬁ? Take that to Mr. Chapa.

@  Is that your signature?

A Bo, sir. ?hié sigﬁ&%ﬁze is from Ry - Chapa.

RBe is my uzele slobu-. FHe is & brother to this man that

sigaed here aiso. |
Q  What is R eﬁap@‘ﬁ-fgii a&mﬁ?

4  Rensldo Chapa., He was the foremun éf'ﬁﬁa

 jenitors there in the school. Custodian.

Q The Benavides Independent School Distriee?
A | Yes, sir, | |

@ Se that is anot your signature ou that.

4 Ho.

Q And your testimony is that you have never

charged anything at Zertuche Gumexal Btore,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A No., This is Renaldo Chepa.

QG "is the Zertuche Gemeral Store—what is the
reputation of the Zertuche General Store in the county
down there?

A What i{s what?

Q If it doesn't have any merchandise how does
evarybody hnow abour ip?

& _€L&mgh%a%?}

G I wean, overybody seems to be famlilisr with

ic.

A I don't know. Are you fsmiliar with it? You

| never heard of ie?

Q I heavrd something sbout it last aight.
& That’s how the people here kmow about it., I
gusss the only mezchandise they had were these invoices

to make tickets. {Laughtax!)

¢ You went to woxk for the Water Distriet in '747

Yes, ‘eir.

When was that?

April the first.

April aha firaz of 747

2 0 > Lo B

Yes, sir.
] And that is also the date prior to that date
you were friends of Judge Carrillo?

A I was 8 close friend to him aand them all of a

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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sudden he stéréed——h@ quit going to the station. I sald,.

"Well, I guess he doesn't want to be my friend," All of

~3

9
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his relatives quit going tc my station. The only one

that would go was his daddy until about, oh, I would

say about three months ago.

Q 8o he mever did come by to take you around
with him any more?
& No.
Q v.?ﬁﬁ ééﬁﬁ? did tag along with him any after
chat? |
A Ho.
Q You never did go out to his ranch any after
thac?
A Fo.
Q Bave you ever worked for éha county ?
& Fo.
Q For the school distriece?
A .
g 4nd prior Co April 1, '74, you had never
worked for the Reclamation Districe?
A Ko,
'Q Or any of the political subdivisieons, the ecity

of anybody else, the politfcal subdivisions?

A

Q .

You mean eaployaed by them?

, Pardon me?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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a Employed by the county or the school ox what-
ever it is?

Q Righe.

A Ro, sir,

QG You had bean self-employed pfior to that?

& I cane buek from the service and then I
worked as & zouliueck and then I bought the station and
I've been theze.

¢ Going baek just briefly and thea I'm fiunlshed.

in Hoveuber of '73 when you observed the use
of cthis dackhoe Chat you have stated to your koowledge
?on knew to boloug to the Reelaumation Distriet, did you
considor é@m&%&iﬁg.wrﬁ@g with that?

4 I conslidered something wrong %@é&%&ﬁ they
didn’e went to lend it Co me when I esked for iLt.

.@ When did you first tell somebody that you had
¢bserved Judge Carrillo using this backhoe¥

A . Whes I tell somobody?

Righe,
I maver told nobody.

Unelii toaight?

> 5 P O

Yea, sir.
¢ Ras aoma&hing happenad since November of '73
then th&% makes it {mportent to you that you sh@uld

reveal the use of thie?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A I think how come he used it and I couldn't
use it.

Q Thank you.

A I'm a tax payer like he is. I guess I was
obligated to use it also.

MR. DONALDSON: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney?
BY MR. LAREY

Q ‘¥Mr. Chapa, before the time the Judge stopped
buying gas from you, did he buy all his gas from you?

A Most of lt. He would spend about, oh, $700
a month that I'm missing now.

Q Was that just what he used himself, or was
that his workers and all? |

A Tomas Elizondo and Roberto Elizoado and him-
self would go buy, and Patricio Garga snd sometimes his
nephews would go buy and £ill up the car, his car, you
know, and sign the ticket.

Q What reason do you think that you all's
friendship stopped or the reason he stopped t:&dimg
with 5ou or your friendship stopped?

A W%ii, last year— I can’t recall the—April the
5¢h, I guess it was, of last year, I ran for the City
Council in Benavides, and I asked him for his support

and I asked his brother, Oscsr, and the man told me that

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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- daddy, D. C., Chapa, and I told him that I wanted to run

Y45 loug a8 I'm here, the man that's here right now as

the use of talking to him again.
13

 the man thet was sauning with another friend of mine was

| 80 wa hed & recount, Aand District Judge Ca#ﬁiiiu said

| Octevio Baenz, he's the nayor, he's been mayoxr for I

24

i

he was golng to help me. I was running for an unexpired
tem of Pat Conzalies—he is deceased already] he had died.
And they told me thgt—he had told me that they would

help me out.

About a ye:r prior to that I had gone to his 1

i
¢

for Comstabls of bonavides, He told me "Ro." He said,

Constable is goinmg to stay there." So I dida't go to bis
daddy because I kaew he was not going to give me the

suppozst. ﬁa had failed on me ome time so I sald what's
8¢ I rau for Che City Council and I lost. And
raﬁﬁiﬁg oz mayor. They cene out éi@d.iﬂi&h@vaﬁaaﬁiam.

E&a&jth@ m§y6r, the former ﬁayar,th@zé'ahatjhas always
been @ﬁéx& won ahavaiecaion in the recount. It came out—
ic was %56?359. 8o we had a recount and eh&&'maw,
don't kaow how mamy vears, wom.

80 we started kimd of breakiag ouz relacionship
end evarything, you kmow. Thon his brother, Oscar, ran
in May last year—it was last yeaz. A tiouth aftex that

aﬁacaian.his brother ran. I was & close friasud of Osmcar

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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too. I was with him sometimes. I would go everywhexe
with him: Rio Gramde, everywhere. When he ran for
Represgutative I wouild gd with him and heip him out in
his ca@paigning and everything. So I saild that I
couldn't support him, you know, in the election this
time, |

Q Wast election was that?

FA For Scustor. Becsuse he didn‘t help me
elthor, so I sald "I caa't help you either." So I
sald, "You po your way snd I'li go my way." And he ran
againet S&ﬁé&ﬁt Johs Traeger, and he lost for the second
&i&ea I gués%.

G  You were supporting Senator Tra@g@f?'

& Yee, sir. Then I ran for the scheol board juse
thic year, 4pril, and since then, simce May of last year
thay just quit goimg o my station. That's ft. They
don't go no more. |

Q  You said they signed up for about $700 worth
of gas & month ot your station. Did you ever see the. |
Judge or amyone celoe £ill up anywhere else with gascline?
Anywhere else? '

Yes.
Probably that Gulf service station, or Exxon.‘

- What about from the county tanmks?

> L 2 O B

I don't kaow. Either purehased or got it, or
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whatever tﬁ@y dié.

Q This Pe¢ CGonzaleg that you spoke of a';hile
ago that you— I believe you said you were running for
his unexpired rerm or'somethiug. Was he deceased?

A Yen, sir.

Q is this the same Pat Goazale® that we had
teseivony yaa%aféay that worked at this PFarm &énd Ranch
Stevel?

& e wagr——

Q dr Farm Supply?

A He was an employee of the county and worked at
the Parm aand Ranch. |

Q 1 notlce that-— are you and the Judge apy
ralation?

A  No way.

MR. LANEY: That’e all, Mr. Cheirman.
- CHAIEMAN HALE: Ms. Thoupsoua?
BY %ﬁ.‘?%&%?ﬂéﬁ

¢ Mr. C§a§gg you indicated chat saveral of your
velagives worked Zow the sehool system or the Water
District and t&e gounty .

A My r@l&%i&é&?

Q Your relatives, Unclas.

& Ho, They work for the school.

Q

Worked for the school?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A At éha% time they were working for the gchool.

Q They don't work for them now?

A ;Tﬁéré’s one. There's Edward Chapa—he's my
daddy's b;&ther—«aﬁd tpere's Raél Ch&pa~fhe's a cousin
but I call him an uncle. But he's a mechanic for the
school. He has been a mechanic for I don't know how many}
years. He'’s got his own shop, his own place where they
geke the busses, vhatever hag to be Fized.

Q Did he go to aayone fov his job to get it or
éid he just apply iike you did?

A I don't kaow. He probably could have gone to
Judge Carzilio boeesauce he was the Presideat of the Board
these vaars, thoss baek years, I don't kmow. I don't
keow how many y@éﬁ@ ha's been mechanic.

Q You gaid eawlier that you tagged along soma¥
times and went out Lo the Judge's r&ﬁ&h.

4 Yes, ma'anm.

Q Did you go out to the Judgs's raunch on any.
time that you were supposed to have beem &t your job?

a At my job?

Yes.
I was wot empioyéd them. I had uy own étacion.

Well, during the time that you were employed.

> L0 P O

Ho. Sincevépril the 1lst, from thera'on. of

*74 1 never éaggeﬁ along or they never picked me up any
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more.
Siace belore April.
Before April?

Yes.

of '747

Yes.,

> L0 oL P O

'74 I novesw.
G Mr. Chaps, did you ever yecommend any of your

friends to the Parm cad Ranch Stove or to Zertuche-—

3 Ho, I reconmended—
qQ General Dtorve for——le? me finish my quostion,

plagse, siz.

Did you over recommend any of your friends to
elther of thoss two stores o go therd to gat food if
they ware in nesd of food and £4i1l eut one of those
vhite vouchezs that you saw thgt the Commitiee had here
carifer? |

| A | One or two occasions. You've talking about
the Welfare?
'_Q' '?es, T am,

"4  On ono or two occaslons I guess I recommended

them to go &o Cleofus Conzalez, I guess one tinme was for

medicine and some ledy that had to ses the doctor or

"e@w@ﬁhiﬁg. I gueus he gave them the order. I told them

Yes, bofore April of '74, yes. After April of

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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to go to Cleofus to the Ferm and Ranch Supply and see if
chay'll give you ow;oﬁ ond I guest ho did beca;se they
never came back and aoked me again.
MS. THOMPSON: That's all, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you. | |
CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington?
BY M8. WEDDINGTON
G Mr. Chapa, how much of a discount did you get
vhen you bought your pileckup?
A When I bought my pileckup?
Q Yes. |
A No diacount. |
Q Did you buy it in the Frall?
A I bought it in Rovamber of '73.
- Q  Isa'e that usnalljlyheu they give discounts
on buying pickups? | | |
& Yes, but the car that I traded fn I atill owed
on . iz g0 thay couldn't give me any discount.
Q@  Tot evem off the purchase price?
a4 Pegbably thoey gaﬁé«m& vomething but it was not
too mueh,
' Q ~ 1'm surpriced you van remombor so elearly when
you bought thot pichup. What makeo it so elear in your
nitd shot 4t was November?

A Because my truck was mow. I had just bought it

H%CKMAN REPORT%NG SERVICE
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Q When did you buy the car before that?
A A year before, and I had some trouble with it

B0 I traded it in because I still owed-—

Q Whét date did you buy 1it?

A My cax?
Q Yes.,
A i1t was bought in December of '72.

Q Do you remember what month you bought all your
cars ia?
| A Yes. Decause, you know, when I don't pay them‘
I’a&ail get the coupon book there amd I can look at them.
Q Okay .

A Tou ses, I make moathly paymeats. I don't

Q VYou naid chat none of the people who were
working who were officers in, I believe you said that
Gab R&ma& is pm&i&&t of what?

A G&b Raymond.

Q Is prasident of what?

A The Wager District.

Q And you gaid that none of the officers of the
Waﬁer Distzict currently are related to Judge Carrills.
Is that correct? | | |

3 Raymond nor Canales nor Herrera nat'Peweé.

Q They a¥e not related?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A They aretaat related,

Q How do yeu know they aré-not related?

A Because I know théy're'net related. |

Q And you know who their familyiis and who they
are— |

A Whose family?

Q Those pasple who are the officers.

A Yes, ma’am.

Q Why did you answer & question a while agoe
that you di& not know whether any of those peeple were
related to the Canales family?
| A They asked me if F, H. Canales was related to
Teréy Canales, and I saild "I don't know."

Q  FHow is it that you know he's not related to

Judge Carrilio but you don't know whether or not he's

 reiated to Terry Canales?

A Who, F. H. Canales?

Q Yos.

A Because I asked him. I asked F. H. Canales
if he was relsted to O. P.yand he's not. If he is, he
probably lied to me. |

Q Have you ever asked him Lf he was kin to Terry
Canoles?

& I never have. He might be.

Q Have you asked every member of the Board

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Chapa 2-65

whether or not they are kin tonjudge,o. P, Carrillo?

A I know who is related there in town and who is
not related. it's a small town.

Q Then why don't you know whether or not they
are related to Terry Canales?

A ¥. §. Canales?

Q Any of them.

; MR. CANALES: Mrs. Weddingtos, I live in
Freewont, which {s about 40 miles away from Banavides
and I very seldom go to Benavides.

A _I:have‘knowu him for about two years, I guess,
and I have hardly—— I just see him once in & while and
that's about {t. I do see 0. P. Carrillo every day in
town, I ébgseg,?. H. Canales and everybody im town,
and I know who fs related there in town. I cannot tell
you Lf everybody in town, who 4s related and not related,
but I know those individuals that are not related.

G Ara any of the people curvently on the Board
ralated to the Parre? ,

A On the Board of the Water District?

A Yes. |

A ‘wng matan,

Q They are not related to either tha Carrillos
or the Parrs?

A Thay ore mot related to either onme.
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~ AUSTIN, TEXAS




o

ESN

10

11 -

12

13

14
15
16

17

19

20

21

22 .

25 |

vaapa 4Z-50

23

Q You said that you have been very good friends
with the Jﬁ&ge u% until April of '74. 1Is that correct?

Q  Uh huh, |

Q ‘And that you were out at his place on a
weekend in November of '737 |

A Rovember of '73., Yes.

Q  So you all were good friends from November
through Agwgﬁé

A Yes.

Q  And during that time did he:stillicontinue to
pick yeu»up regulariy’and you would go with him?

4  From Hovember to April?

Q Yes.

A Yes, aa‘en.

Q Did you ever go dback out to the éama ranch?

& Often. I would go often. I would aven go
huntiag at hié ranch.

Q The same ranch you went to during—

A W@ll. he's got two orithrae ranches behind
there, you know.

Q  Did you ever go back to the same ranch’during

that period.of time?

A Yos. Yas, ma'am. To the ranch house?

1] Wﬁa: did they build on that foundation?

A They built—they say 1{t's a store. That's what
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he said he was building, a store, a grocery store.
Beeausé it's at an intersection between Hebbroamville and
Freer and {t's about I would say forty miles—there is
nothing in between. He was going to open a grocery
store. And the people that come from Benavides through
that highway, they could stop there and buy something.
There are a lot of little ranches around there, you
kﬂw“ - . | .

Q Have you seen that store since it was finished?

A Just the au&si&é. |

Q But you do kunow ehen vhat was being built on
that foundation?

A Well, he had told me he was going to build a
store when he was building it.

Q And then you have seen the store since and you

| know it is a store?

A It doesn t have aay signa or anything on it.
| X8 {t open for busim@as? |

Ho. It was never finished, t;guéabg'
~ What do you mean, you gﬁesa?-

If tt vas f£inished it would be open.

o5 > o > o -

- What was it like the last time you saw 1t?

A - Well, it's finished through the outside. It's

 got windows and~avaiything.“ That's why I know from the

outsiée. xt'a_like'aay ordinary house that is finished,

\
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Q Did you wir your seat on the school board?
A  Ma'am?
Q . pid you run for the school board?

Yes, ma'am.

&
 ,\¢;;MMQh’ Dié you win a seat on the school board?
o A

Yes, ma‘am.

“'\;;t\ Q  How much do you get paid for being on the

ach&ai yé@ﬁd?

& : wééhﬁng.

Q ﬁ#ﬁ ﬁnch time do you have to spend being on
the school board?.

A Just when they have meetings.

qQ Row often is that?

A Well, we've been having a lot lately.

| (Loughter!)
Q vﬁte‘ynu still sitting as a member of the
school board? | -
A .Wsll, there are two boards. I don't know
vhich one to sit in. (Laughteri)

Q  Which board are you on?

A 1 couldn't answor that right now.

Q Blected or appointed? You were oﬁ the elected
board then? | |

A  Yes, ua'am. I‘m»an the elacted board.

Q Who is giving you some trouble gbout whether

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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or not you are elected?

A Who 1s giving me trouble?

Q Yes .
A That I'm elected or not elected?
Q Yes.

A Nobody i8 giving me trouble that I'm elected
not elected. I'm elected, |
Q I1s auybody givimg you any trouble about

vhather or aot you are lawfully serxving as a wmember of

| the school board?

A Not right now. Probably later on.
Q Who do you expect that would be?
A The Judge sitting here.
M3, WEDDINGTON: That's all, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you.
| CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chave?

BY MR. CHAVEZ

Q Do 1 understand you that there are two boards?

Two achooliboatés?

A There are two boards, that I know.

Q That you know? When did the second board
come iﬁ? |

A The second board came in I would say about

Ghreoe Fridays ago, when all the suspended or what——they

have beeon suspended, I guess, or—

or |
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O L

Q

electad with you, have they been removed from office?

A
Q

vA‘

- Q

i

Were you removed from office? §
That have been ramoved from office temporarily.g
Have you been temporarily removed from office?

No. Not yet. _ i

Has anybody on the school board that got

- That have been elected with me?

Yes.
Not yet.

Have eay of the elected school board members

besn renoved from office?

A

Y- - S U Y Y

. A N

Four or five of them, I guess.
They have been removed?

They have been removed,

By a court ovder?

By a court order.

Do you know how these court orders get out?

I don't know. They haven't given me one yet.

Do you hknow how & judge, any judge—

1 guess somebody goes and signs like a complaint

or aomothing to the District Attormey, or somebody, and

for somo raaaon or othor, and then thoy take it to the

Judgo aud 1 guama ha cenoi@era 1& or eomething and he

aigno {¢, or whataver it s,

Q

All right. That ia what I'm getting at. 1Im
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it.

Q 1f somebody reports something wrong that
somebody has done something illegal it's his duty to see
that an investigation {s made and do whatever is nece-
ssary to carry out any prosectuion?

& Yes, sir, I guess. He is in charge of the
‘3rand jury or whatever.

Q E§ the ﬁisariet attorney does not go to the
judga with aay caaplaint, any petition to remav@
affieata, ahan\tha»fu@gﬁxually e&n ¢ remove them?

A I dom't ﬁﬁink so.

Q I mean he doesn't just on his own some day
pick up the phone and say, "I'm going to remove so and
oo," without anybedy coming to him. /

A I don't know.

Q why is it that you &hink that the Judga is
gaing to. remave yeu? ' ,

| A. I guess he will remove me. ée_haéﬁﬁeﬁéved
all @f eham already. | : }.

»Q | Do you knov the reaeoue why he. haa ‘removed
eham?. 

A' "For qoam:ﬁ&ng,'juet_wﬁgn.z read {n the papers.

'@  You don't have any personal knowledge of why

‘ he has rempved any of these peeple?

Af I don' t knew.
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Q Have you attended any court sessions as to
vhy, to see whatlis——
A One or two. I was there for a while and
then I left.
MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I'm sure as
far as Mr. Chavez' questions are concerned, I have
witnesges on this point that the removals began after a

press release that was made I baelieve on March 19th

by Judge 0. P. Carrillo that he was splitting with the

old party and a day or two later they removed four

or £ive members of the school board. The tescimony is
ferchcoming. I don't think this witness can tell you
what actually happened. He ¢ not here in that capécity,
but you're welcome to cross ezamine or examine him on
that. _

Q You said that you theught that probably you
might be éegovédgz might have sbme problems with the
Judge later on.. | .C |
vg Uh huh.

Has anybody told you this?
No. Just my thinking.

Nobody has threatened you?
Ro. Hot yet. |
Specifically, Judge Carrillo?
Ho..

- - - - Y-
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Q He hasn't told you, "You've only got a few
days left to serve on the school board?"
A No, he hasn't told me-—yet.

Q No one from his office has come to you to tell

you?

A Wo.

- Q Eé hasn’t in any way restricted your activity

88 & school board meﬁbei?

a Ho.

Q | Or has he interfered with you or your family
in any other way? |

A Ro.

Q Either he or any of his agents, friends,
employeas? |

A None of then.

Q  Apparently what I gather is that you and the

| gudge had a'political»fighc,»l guess, or parting?

A Spiice.
- Q You split. All right., I guess you'ze not
too friendly with the Judge and his party!?
| A  He doesn't greet me; I don't greet him.
Q All right. Now, if you were still inm good
graces with the Judge and his political party, would you
éoma doun here and testify? -

A IﬁAI was still in his party?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Q Yes. |

A Would I come and testify? VYes.

Q Even though you might be getting him in

A It was wrongdoing, wasn't it?

Q 'What was wrongdoing? |

‘A .?aking the backhoe over there and the cement.
Q You doun't know if ke hed permission te take

it over thera.

A How can you get permission to take cement

that doesn't belong to you? (Laughter.)

Q Do you know that he toock—
Hou's that? |

Who does it belong to?

The county. Duval County.

Aﬁd whe operates thet precinct?

> 0 > O B

Bdis brother, Ramiro Carrillo. |

Q Do you think that Ramiro Carrillo has the
suthority to sell cement? |

Al I£ he bought it through Zertuche Farm and Ranch
or wharever he bought it.

Q Vhore have on gotten this information?

A I heard it in town.

Q You don't have personal knowledge of these

transactionz, do you?
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A
Q

I don't have no records, nothing.

Forget the recovds. I mean, you weren't there

when any of these tramsactiona took place, were you?

A
Q

Ranch and lsgusd a receipt or an invoice from Zertuche?

A

When the cement was unloaded?

When somebody bought something from Farm and

Wag: I there when they went and bought cement

and they made ig—

Q
A

they made

Q

Gement oy anything else.

i doa't kaouw if they made a ticket, to whoever
it when it was picked up. “

Were yéufhere.iaét evening, last night?
When it was picked—

&aselnigka. Were you here last night?

Toeg aighe?. (.5 oz

- Yeo.

Was I here?

Yos.

fésp'siz. T a8 here all nighé. | |
You heaxd the testimony of thia man Gonzaleé?

’Eéa, 8 &r .

These thinga that he testiffed about that

tha eounty vould buy things from Zertuche but actually

the merchondise came from Ferm and Ranch and Zertuche

| laveileed ché aeruhandise.A Do you have persohﬁl knowledge

[
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Chapa ' 2-77

of any of these transactions taking place?

A

Do I have any personal knowledge? Do you

mean that—

Q

That you know yourself, saw or participated

in in any way?

o> O >

Just what I heard Mr, Gonzalez say.
Okay . | |
I guess his word is goo&, {£ he says it.

You also heard that he has testified at some

grand jury? Did you hear that last night, that he has

'appaated before a grand ﬁury?

A

L P O L

Yes, he has.

Have you appeared before a grand jury?

. No, sir.

Are you undegr subpoena to any grand jury?

. No‘ sir.

I undersotand that they were golng to start a

trial down thers in Rio Grandé Ci;y Mbnday;*ﬂwere_you

subpocnacd to appear in that'prbceedihg2 )

A..

Q

"Ho. No, sit,‘Ifwaén’é.

Are you’éure thgt-your appeafing hare and

testifying 1is not political revenge?

A

Q
A

what do you mean,‘"political revenge"?
You'rc not trying to get back at the Judge?
No.,
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Q He's your political anemy but you wouldn't do
anything like that to hurt him?

A No.

Q Intentionally.

A Tomorrow or the day after he knows something
about me and he thinks ; was wrongdo;ng. let him come
and testify here. Do the same.

Q Besides that particular ranch, &033 he own
any other property im other counties, for instance,
laredo, Rio Gramde Citcy aand in that area?
| A Relawﬁs some land in Hebbronville, outside of
Hebbronville, and I don't know of Rio Grande. I know
he's got 2 ranch {n Rio Grandes because I went once. But
I don't know who it belongs to; 4if it's his, if it's
rented or Lf:4t's loaned or gave it to him, or what.

Q At - v of these other places have you sean
county eqﬁipaeae being used there? |

A ‘Where? o

Q¢ At any of these other ranches?

A 'ﬁet in those ones, but the one outeide of
Benavides I have.

MR. CHAVEZ: Thank you, Mr. Chaivman.
BY CHAIRMAN HALE |
¢ Mr. Chapa, when did you bocome a member of

the school §a§rd?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS




o
11
12
13
14

15

C16

17

19

20 .

21
22
23

24

uvnapa . ; 2-7¢

April, the day I won the election, April£5th.
0f what year?

This yearx.

197517

> Lo B> Lo >

Yee.

'Q Is that the Benavides Indepenéent School
Distriect?
A ?és,'sir.
Q 8iz?
A Yes, sir. The Benavides Indapéndent School
Districat.
§ é&d;ygaksvar been a membar of that school
board prior to April of 19757 |
A Mo,‘air;», | o \&‘
Q I.noziced one or two things thétageem to be
of cofncidence to me. Oue? you said you weks*g good

friond of Judge Carrillo up until about Aprii 1;%197&,

and suddenly-you woere no longer a friend. Also, ySu

vent to work for Duval County eonaervation aud )
naclam&tian Distriect om April 1, 197&. Are both of
those staeemencs correct? . -

A I wen: to wvork Apzll lst, of 1974 for the
Water Dtscmgc:, And as I sald from April lst, I m
calking from there on, from April let, or it could have

been the 3rd or 4th, you know, when we just split.
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18

22

Q Pid your split with Judge Carrxillo result in
your getting the job with the Water Districe?

A I gﬁesa;' His nephews were in the Water
District, ana‘éomeyof his relatives were working there
at the Water District. I took one of the positions of

one of his nephews, The position that I have right now

‘belonged to ome of his nephews.

' Q  Was his nephew fired?
4 He. Eé?quit on himseiﬁ..

Q I believe you stated prior to April 1, 1974
that Judge Carrillo and his family éraéed with you at
your Texaco station and averaged about $700 a month.

1o 2&&5 righ%?‘
A Just hfm.
Q Just him?

A Juat bim. |

Q And your salary with the Duval County Conserva-
tion ond Reclamation District was $700 a moath.

A Well, fe's §700.

Q@ Was there any relanieuahip betwean.those?

A To. | | |

G How did they arriﬁa at how much salary they
would pay yau?/ |

‘A How did they arrive what?

Q | liow did they detexminc how juch they would pay

" HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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) | yau‘whe;n ycu weat to yﬁrk for :ho Watelx' District? |
z‘ v »E A B ﬂhon,z went to work fér the Waeat District?
3 o Qe Yas, sir. | |
a0 A That was the same sala:y that his nephew was
5' getting in :h&t position so chnc 8 the salary I 3ot. I
o6 )l vtth l cculd heve gotten mora. but eha: s it. |
ol cnatmum maLE: Are there any other
5275gif .qutatzana £ron the caantcnaat | o
sl | VICE CUATRMAN MALONEY: Yes, e,
| m , 3 cBAIMﬂ mwg Hg.. Vm_lon:ey has .;éﬂﬁé
?fﬁ”;hgf»_oahae qutsezaa:. - | DR
ol mms womy

féﬁ[}{??”;gga, Q !nu have told us abouc ona oaeattnn vhun ‘the -

ﬂ?f tron the caaacrvattnu b&::r&cz uca bcing uscd.'_
(!ha ﬁi;nmst aed&nd d 54,,,.;531_1;_, \
§J!buyaa&é there unrc o&hﬁ: occasions vhcrﬁ

at prapt:cy vas unca on the Jadsc .

fl_fﬁﬁﬁv. '73. 2 couldn t
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tell you exact dates or years or anythimng. The last timej
I sav something there was about three months ago. Not

to recall it, I'll tell you one thing. About & month
ago-—about & month and a half ago—please don't ask me the
date, because I don't know— I was there at my house,

the traller house, outszside my trailér housé, and the
county truck pésses to the other street in back of ny
station loaded with a caterpillar and a root plow on it.
And it wae tskenm and I guess the lowboy belongs to the
county. I know the truck beloangs to the county; And
1c was driven by Tomas Elizondo. It was taken to O. P.'s
raqch§‘..
| Q How do you kanow that?
A  Because 1 saw it. I weat out. Later on I

wvent tagging along.

Q@ Why?
A  To see where it was going.
Q@ umy? D

A 'vBeaauae he wae usiug che equipmeat. A‘loc of

'.,peopla would 1ike to use that equipment toa, you knaw.

Q ' Why were you so particularly 1nterested in it

on that occasion?

‘,Ax Beeauae 1: vas wroagéoiag.
Q WGIX, you had seen some wrongdoing some two

years before and you hadn't reported it to anyone, had
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you?

A If he's got a big tractor, or whatever he's

got, he should have a truck, I guess, of his own to move

i

it.

Q Was it part of your job to follow these people

around and see where the property is being used?

A Ko, it's not my job but I just happened to go.

I went to see whers it was going, where it was going to

go work at.

¢} Did you follow on any other occasions any

‘ceuney»prapéréy out to see where it was going to be

ugaed?
A Qe, sir, 4
Q You did see county property in the ecity,
dida't you? |
A In the eity?

Q In the city or there sbout your station.

You hed scen county property around your atation before,

had you not?
A Waell, paasing through there.

Q@ bid you follow any of those othexs?

A Ho. I just wanted to gee where that tractor

vas golng, where it was going to go work,

Q Well, buc'you didn't know where these others

wore going either, 4id you?
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onyone sbout 1t?

{

A whichacthe: ogea? I can't bevfollawing every
truck that passes through there £rom the county.

Q I was just wondgring why.

A Well, because I wanted to know, that's why.
I wanted to know for myself where it was going. So I
followed it &nd Ivknaw where it went.

G Now that you knew where it want, what did you
do sbout it!? |

A I just kept on going., I passed along and’
then later on I turned back and came back to town.

Q Dia ynuvehen report that to aanyone?

& No. I just kept it to myself.

Q And this 48 the first time you have told—

A | I.juat wanted to know for myself.

Q Is éhis_khe first time you have told anybody—

A 1 wvas mot going to write.

Q  vhy mot? | | |

é I sav the tractor going by loaded on that truck.
It's @ tr&gtor,.th&t is what {t is. 1 said it belongs to
the ¢cpunty.. 1It's not his. If you had trasters; wouldn's
you 1iko to usc some equipment thet you weulda't have to
pay for it, save momey or something?

Q  4A¥e you mad bocause you didan't get to use it?

A Ne. Beocouce there are a lot of people‘that
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Chapa 2-85

would like ¢o use it.

Q Like whom?

A A lot of people there im town that would like
to use somothing, geﬁ some benofits out of it. Why
does he got benefits whea the otheé people can't get
benefits okt if ie? If it belongs to the county it
»shoﬁld stay in the couaty aad that's it.

Q ‘I@ it your position that if it belomgs to the
county it shouldstay in the county, or is it your
position that if the Judge is going to use it everybody
ougﬁtree be gble to?

A They should lend it to somebody else.

Q .Aaéayou were still a little bit hot because
you didn't get to use that backhee when you wanted to.

A Ko, I'm not hot sbout the backhoe.

Q Yhen was the posthole digger used?

A Last year. Please dén‘i ask me dates becadse
I don't know.

Q = Was it before or after the occasion of the
backhoa? |

A Before the occasion. They were building
soma partiziqns'efvland that he had bought and he was
root pleuiug it and xaking {t, and it happens to bé like

I tell you, I would go to his ranch very often. They

vore moking some partietions of land because he had knocked
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Chapa 2-86

down the brush, raked it and everything, and he had

planted some bubble grass. So I guess he didn't want

for the cows' to go in there so that's why he was making
the partition. He had that thing.
Q I believe you testified that Tomas Elizondo

was an employee of the county., 1Is that right?

A Yes, sir.
Q Whég d;d he normally do for the county?
A For the county? ‘
Q  Right.
. ¥

I neveor seem him work for the couaty.
- Q I thought youvaaid he was an employee of the
county. | |
A He is an employee of the county and getting
poid from the county, but he is an employee at his ranch,
at o. P.is rench,
@  You aevér oaw him doing any work any place
613&? |
A  Not thet I know of.
Q Did he work from day to day, or just on odd
jobs? Was he there every day? |
V-A Where? |
'Q At thg‘qudge's ranch?
A I can't say that he's there at the ranch, but

he's i{n his vehicle every day, in the Judge's truck or

-
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car or whazever it is,.
Q Hew do you know that he was paid by the.
county?
A I know he's paid by the county.
How do you know?
I got informed.
Eow did you get infomed?
I went to the County Auditor's office.
VWhen? | |
I gaassﬂit was about four months ago.

Faur maaths ago? How ibng do you know he had

4%4@&*9&&»0

bean rking far ‘the county?
Prior Co that 1 had asked ﬁléo.

1 beg your pavdon?

> 0

Prior to ehat. you know, years before, I had
‘ Q : nAakéd'ﬁhom?

A lThete at che COunty Auditar 3 office. The

| zacords wez@ publtcﬁ I guesg.

o A ‘MR, CANALES:. Excuse me, Mr. chaitman 1
have\ﬁr.‘Oceaviemninajosa here who has wich»him the
county racérda_cn payrolls, and he will testify to the
efféet that Mr. Tomas Elizondo was.employed'ahd has been
co gmployaélfér quite a while. I think the last check

ie comothing in *75. He is more familiar with the point,
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MR. MALONEY: I wouldn't prefer right now.g

Q I weuldllike to know why.you felkt it:necessary -
1f you already knew this man was employed by cthe county
that you want to gheck his records four months ago? |

A go See ig he was still eﬁployed by the county. 3

Q biﬁ he do anything that made you think he
wasn'e?

A The Judge could have gotten him om his payroll,
with all the ranches he's got, equipment and ¢attle and
avnryehing; I guess he could afford tb pay. é&nd I said,
well, let me go ch&ek and see if he's still on the payroll. "
Do you know Roberto Elizondo?

Yeo, air.
Is he any relstion to Tomas Elizondo?
Thayire brothers,

bid he work for the county?

> 0 > O 0O

Did he work for the county? Yes, aif. He
aetli does, I guass.

Did you check his vecords too?

Yos, eir. I checked both of them.

'th?

Like i told you, I wanted to'kgow‘

I thought you alraeady knew.

> 0 > O B o

Prior to that when I checked yeare back I
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checked Robert Elizondo and he was on the—he had claims
or whatever you want to call it.

Q You started checking people and you started
following county equipment around while you, yourself,
were on the county payroll.

A I didn't start fo;lowing people ané county
equipment. I wanted to check on those two persons, not
two, but three, Patricio Garza.

Q  You were checking on Patricio Garza?l

4 You see, I wanted to know whether they were
getting pai&, or Qhat. And then X foliowéd that truck to
seo where it was going. But I was not following county,
you kaow, aiery day. 1 followed that one and I checked
on those eé&aes

Q Howy; I'm sorry, but I canﬁ@& recall what work
you @aid P&tricio Garza didi:

A se ia a ranch hand, repairs windmills. He's
& cook at the ranch. You call it, he does {t.

| Q Ao far as you know he doesn't work any place
elﬂe but at the Judge 8 ranch?

4  Well, there at the ranch or whether in town if

he Lo needed. I guess he's got a barn or something

therc in town, the Judge. I guecs when they need him

thora, or wherever they need him he'll go.

Q - Hew loag had Pat Gonzalez been on the City

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Council bgfo:é‘he passed?
A . I don't know. - He could have been there for 3
years. He could have been there four, six, eight vears.

I don't know. I know he had been on the City Council

years back.

Q Was he on the City Council at the same time thaﬂ

g
5 |
?

he was workiné at ﬁhe Farm and Ranch Store?
A Yes, sir. When he died he was at the Farm and ;
Ranch and he was on the City Council. %
Q When did he die, Mr. Chapa?
A Oh, I couldn't tell you. I don't know., I |
don't know. I sure don't know when he died.
Q But that's the same time you ran for his

unexpired term.

A Yes, but his office was-—the: seat, you know, wasg

vacant.
Q It_beeame vacant when he died.
A It ‘became vacant when he died and then—

Q Aﬁd that's when you ran for the City Council?

A Then some months later they said they had a
meeting there at the City RallAand I attended the
meeting to see wvhat was going on, and it came up that
there waiva'vdcant seat, you know, on the City Council.
So I told them that I wanted to run. I told them I

would see if I could run or something, aéd I did, and I

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



10

11

13

14

15

i6

17

18

19

21

22
23

24

‘Chapa : 2-91

lost and that was {t.
Q Is the City Council in Benavides a paying job?
A Not that I know of, sfr. I don't know.
VICE CHAIRMAN MALONEY: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks, do you
have some more questions?
MR, HENDRICKS: Just one subject I would
like to touch on, Mr. Chairman.
BY MR. HENDRICKS
Q | Mr.'chapa, you said you knew Cleofus Gonzalez.
A 1 know him.
Q You were present here when he testified last
evening?
| A Last night?
Q Yes, sir.
A Yes, sir, I was here.

- Q Have you ever in the past ever reported Judge
Carrillo's misusing county eéuipment or any kind of
government equipment?

A Yes, sir. 1 guess Cleofus Gonzalez mentioned
it last night.

Q Were you with Cleofus Gonzalez:at any time
when hq.ma&e,alreport of the miguse of the equipment?

A  Of the misuse of the equipment? I was there

when he called.
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Q When was this?

A It was last year in the grain season. You
know, the grain season is—

Q In '747

A Yes, sir.

Q Where did you go? Did you go with him some-
where?

A No} We were there at his office.

Q At Gonzalez' office?

A Cleofus. Yes. 4nd my office is in the same

Q And your office. All right. What did you do?
A We called the Highway Patrol.
Q  Arfe you familiar with the Highway Patrolman
there in Benavides?
‘V-A. ﬂo.‘ He. is not from Benavides. He's from
Alicé;» Ye have to call Alice. N
| Q Do you know who you‘téikéd to?
A I don't remember if 1§“w;s Highway Patrolman
Mora ot who it was, or Allala. | o
Q What did you :hlnk his*uame wag?
A ﬁo:ﬁ_of Allala. I don't know what. I was the
one that Gonzalez called and then I goﬁ the phohe and
statﬁed talking too.

Q You also talked to the Highway Patrolman?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Yés,tsir.

Wgs the call long distance?

Yes, s8ir.

It was a long distance call?

Yes, sir. It was a long distance.

What did you tell the Highway Patrolman?

> O P> L P> O P

I told the Highway Patrol that there was a
county truck,‘and»t gave him the color and the model and
everything, the license plate number.

Q Did you know the license plate number?

A . I had seen it before. That's why.

Q What was the license number? Do you remember
it now?
A No, I don't recall. But it's an International

truck, a yellow one, and it's got an exempt license.
And the trailer—the grain trailer it's got on it had
just & regular license plate, you know, like any other
regular license plate. _SQ there were some people, you
know, farmers, thet had been, you know, I had been
talking to them.

Q All fight. Did anyone enter this conversa-
tion besides you and Gonzsaleg?

A  Was a&nybody else there?

Q Yes.

A No. Just him and I,
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question.

‘But you do know it did take place?

Yes.
MR, HENDRICKS: All right. Thank you.
That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Kaster has another

BY MR. KASTER

Q

Mr. Chapa, were you here last night when Mr.

Gonzalez was testifying about the Farm and Ranch Store

and the common knowledge that Mr. Carrillo owned the Farm

and Ranch Supply Company?

A

0 B L

know they
A

Q
A
you know,

Q

Was it common knowledge?

Did you know who owned the store?

They did.

The‘Carrilloé?

0. P, and R. D. Carrillo.

They awqed the store? Did the people in town
owvned the store?

I don‘'t know.

You'kneﬁ?

I knew because on the store license it was,
hanging, and I had—

What I am getting at, when you went to the

store to pick up the cement that you were testifying to

that was loaéed onto the truck to go out to the ranch,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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N

did you know that the Carrillos owned the store then? g
A Yes, s8ir. I knew they owned the store for %
five, six, seven years. i
Q So when they went and got cement they could ;
have been very well hauling off cement thaﬁ they owned, %
because you sald you didn't know who was the county's and%
who was thelr own. Isn't that right? |

A ‘1 didn't say I didn't know what was the
couanty's. I sald on the vehicles; I didn't say about
the cement. |

Q »I asked you earlier about the cement, orx
gsomebody did, and you said you didn't know if the cement
belong to the county or to the Farm and Rench Store; You
dida't know.

A I didn't know L{f it belonged to the county, but
like I'cold‘yéu, hearsay. I heard that it belonged to
the county. Probably later on you can investigate and
somebody might;know that the county bought it,

Q You know they owned the store and-—

I know thgy owvned the store.

—and you got cement from them.

I didn't. I was just looking.
Somebody was getting cement from them.

Yes, sir. Somebody was getting cement.

o > o > o >

Of your own knowledge you don't know if the

e
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owvn knowledge you don't really know.

store owned it or the county owned it? i
A I think the store didan't own it because it

|
|
!
was lots of sacks of cement and it's a large quantity of %
sacks to be bought and a lot of money you're talking |
: : |

|

about.

Q But you don't know if maybe the Farm and Ranch
Supply bought some of the cement and the county bought
the rest of the car load?

A | PP&qBably they bought a car load and split it,
but how can you tell when the sécks are there who used
what? I don't know.

Q But you don't know.

A I.don't know. Probably somebody can later on
sey that an émployea of the county, if they bring some-
body, they might say that the cement belonged to the count

A I kaow what other people can say, but of your

A Like I scid, I didn't see no invoice, I
don'tvhaVQ no :ecords or nothing. I said it a while ago.
MR. KASTER: Thank you.
éﬁAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further
questions?
. M8, TROKPSO&: Yes, sir. I would like to
ask some.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson?
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BY MS. THOH"P(SOH |

Q Hr. Chapa, you indicated that you made a long
distance call to the Highway Department to report the
use of a tfuck to haul grain.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q What month was that in?

A I told you it was in grain season. I can't
reeall}the month but I can ask Mr. Gonzalez probably
and we'll'chgck later on. It was made from his office.
| Q‘  Waé it made on the county telephone?

A | No. It was made from the Benavides Implement
phone{ It was not a county phone.

Q Who now? |

‘A‘ ‘Benavides Implement. It was a phone that
belongs tq-Benadeeg Implement.'_ |

Q  Oh, "Implement." Beaavides Implemenc. '

E,A“. Benavides Implement. | | | |
Q i Is that a city owned telephoae?

A  It belongs to the owner of the store. He has
it there for h;s business, ‘

Q But you don't know whether or not the county

pays the telephonc bill?
A, I dom't know.
Q Was uhe long distance call charged on that

talaphone?
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Charged? I dialed direct.

Sir?

> L »

1 dialed direct.

Q You dialed direct. So that means the call
was actually charged to that telephone number.

A Charged to that number. Yes, ma'‘am.

MS. THOMPSON: Thank you.
A You've welcome.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further
questions?
Mr, Slack has one,
BY MR. SLACK

Q Had your replacement been selected before—you
say therc are tﬁo school boards?

A Yes, sir.

Q And bhave all of you—one elected and one
appointed? Is that it?

A 'Weli. there's been four or five appointed by
District Judge O. P. Carrillo and Hilda— Mrs. Adlai Parr
and myself have been elected. We're the only ones that
have been elected right now. |

Q  And you have not been removed by court order
and a fepiqcement scalected for you?

A Not yeot.

MR. SLACK: All right. Thank you,
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney?

BY MR. MALONEY

Q Did you say that you made the phone call to
the Highway Patrol on the Benavides Implement telephone?

A fes, éir.

Q Who owne the Benavides Implement and Hardware? i

A R. M, Couling.

¢] R. M. Couling?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you were in the company of Cleofus Gonzaleg
at that time?

A We were therc at the same place.

Q Why wvere you thore?

A Because my office is in there also. He's got
a store chére.aud he rents this office to the Water
District, but it's in the back. My office i{s in the
back. And ho's got his desk and everything and office
and everything thero at one side also. 8o the phone
was around there, 8o we grabbed that phone.

Q noes the Benavides Implement and Hardware
Compony carry any inventory? |

A Yes, six.é

Q What do they carry?

A | Oh, lots of things: pipe, paper towels, toilet

paper, pa&nt._
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Q Cement?

A Cement. Horse and ﬁule——you call it, they
might have it tﬁere. | ‘

Q | Do you keep any of the equipment or the
sﬁpplies for the Reclamation District there on those
premisea?i

A Inside the building?

Q@' ~Well, on the premises or ingide the building,

A ‘,Okay. Inside the.building, with the office,
there is a space leased——you know, there is a plece
leasad to that office where we keep the machine that is
for the sewer lines. And like it's an expensive.
machine so we keep {t inside, you know, so it won't get
rusted or anything. We clean it up and we store it in
there.

Q "Any other equipment?

A Janitor supplies that we have and everything
for our jaaitor.

Q Does the Benavides Implement and Hardware
Company do any work for the county or sell anything to
the county or the school district or any governmental
agency? \

A Do they sell to the county or anybody?
Q  Uh huh. | |
A They sell to the Water District and to the

county, I'ggasa,»or to the school, whuever it is.

i -
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Q
A

Q.

Do you do any work for them whatsoever?
For who?

Do you do any work for the Benavides Implement

and Hardware Company?

A
Q

No, sir.

Have you ever been paid by them for anything

that you have ever done?

A

> O » O > L

By the Benavides Implement?
Yes. )
No, sir.
Is Mr. Couling the only owner of that?
I chink he 1is, |
Is he a friend of Mr. Parr's?
I guess.
MR, MALONEY: That's all.

' CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any further

quaestions of Mr. Chapa?

BY MR, CHAVEZ

Q

In connection with this political split we

talked about & while ago, when you split off from Judge

Carrillo's phrty, vhere vera the Zertuche brothers? On

which side?

A

When I split?
Yosa.

Well, the Zertuche brothers don't live there fin
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H
i
i

Benavides no more. One of them {s in Laredo, the other
one is in—well, eventually Arturo was teaching in—
Q . 1In Harlingen?

A No. I don't know if hs was in Harlingen or

if he was in Freer at that time. And Hector, he is {n
Welfare, he works for the Welfare Department. He lives
in Alics, |
| Q = What about Couling? Couling?

A what is that?

Q  Did he take sides in this thing? Whose party
dogs he belong to?

& He is goking my side.

Q  He's taking your side? Now, prior to the spift
he wes also with tﬁe Carrillos? | |

. & We weze‘akl.tegethe:.

Q- #11 togather. You anqi¢ou11ng &nééé
.’&. And Céx:ilids andfzextucheé_énd everybody.
'Q  'Ganza1ez?3 | o |
A .EVe:ybédy. It wés a paéty.-
Q Parza?
A  Yes, sir.
Q And the Parrs too? All together?
A | Yes, sir,
Q Theh, of course, there was this aplit and now

Gonzalez and Couling and you are on the same side and the
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Parrs are on the same side?

A You can say we're on the same side.

Q All of these.people that have been removed
are also on what we might call your side? -

A Yes, sir.

MR. CHAVEZ: Okay. That's all. Thank

you. |
CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further quesciomé?
Mr. Laney?
BY MR. LANEY |
Q Mr., Chapa, was it common knowledge, or would

the public have known about this county equipment being
used by the Judge? I mean did you all have & coffee
shop or & bar or gaything you go to and talk about
things?

A You don't have to go to a bar. You hear it
all around toun.

Q Was it common knowledge around town that the
Judge was using this equipment for his own uge?

A It's been there in town. You'll hear it
around town; _Yéu'knou ic.

Q Did it seem that most people would say, you
know, "That's fine," or did people talk about that he
shouldn't be doing it? In other words, did they approve
of Lt? |
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A

I don't think the people would say "Fine," you

know, Like I said, there were a lot of people that

would like to use that equipment and have personnel from

the county in their houges. I would like to have it

too, 1if I could.

Q

So they didn't really approve of it., Nobody

said anything about it except to each other?

A Well, what could they say?
Q Just talk about it to each other?
4 - Just talk about it to each other.
MR. LANEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CRAIRMAN HALE: Are there further
quastions? o
MR. MALONEY: One short one.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney has another
quéseion.

BY MR. MALONEY

Q

> 0 P O > o >

Where 4o you bank, My. Chapa?

The Bank of South Tenas in Alice.

Do you have a checkiang account there?
Yes, sir.

Dp'you have a savin:s account thera?

No. Just checking.

What was the_name of that bank?

Bahk.of South texas;
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MR. MALONEY: Thank you. |

CHAIRMAN HALE: Any:fu:thar questions?

! (No response.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you have
angthing further ofvthis witness?

MR, CANALES: WNo, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you very much.

A Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.

CRAIRMAN HALE: We aépreciaze youy
attendance.

(The witness, Mr. Ruben Chapa, was
encused.) |

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you want
to call your nexnt witnaess?

Mr. Mitchell, do you want to submit any

qucations for this witness?

MR. MITCHELL: Mr. Chairman, may I state
to the Committee that I'm not prepared to. 4And may I
state to the Commitiee why I'm not prepared?

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir.

MR. MITCHELL: 1I'm not prepared because
1 have not received any Bill of Particulars other than
that contétnad_in HSR No. 161, nor have I received any
Bill of Particulars applyiag to any misappropriation of

county funds or the misuse of county prbperty. I have
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had no advance notice of the witness, Mr. Chaii'mans or
the subject matter to be covered. Coueequently, I
don't knou whather I cen intelliggntly submit questions,

In addition, I have not gono beyond the date
of November 22nd, '74, which 1s the date of the
Certificate of Election of Mr. Carrillo.

I do have some questions, and with that
Baakgrauﬁé I would 1like to put them to the witness
thzﬁngh whatever vehicle the Committee sees fit.

| CHAINMAN HALE: Do you wish to do that
apw?

MR. MITCRELL: May I?
CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, you may.
MR. MITCHELL: And could the Chairmen
bluéprinﬁ for me the procedure that I'm to use?
| CHAIRMAN RALE: Well, normelly—this is
chejfira: one of these committees that I've ever been
néooqia:ed wvith involving impeachment, Mr. Mitchell and
we're all— |
” MR, MITCHELL: 1It's mine too.
CRAIRHAN’HALE: —feeling our way
ptéeedurawiaa.' Lot the Chair state that you had as much
hd@ance notiae abéae what thig wieness would testify to
as all the members of the Committees did. None of us

knew‘wh&t he waa'goiﬁg to testify to until he took the
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oath and started talking, with the possible exception of

Mr. Canales, who is not a member of the Committee.

I would say that this i{s more or less a grand

Jury type of proceeding and, as you are well aware, it is

not adversary in nature.
MR, MITCHELL: I underxstand.
CHAIRMAN HALE: And for that reason we

have norwmally never permitted cross examination on

1&veseigaﬁive committees. In this type of proceeding, I

discusged {& with members of the Committee and we felt

in fairness to you and your client that possibly we might

permit you to ask some questions £ it would tend to

bring out'macérikifeviaence to this 1nqui:y,' We would

hope that you would not attempt to abusévthat privilege

by uﬁnacagsgkiiy prolonging and going tnta(an extensive
erosa_enaginatﬁoni&s ybu’would do 1f this were a trial.
?ﬁiavis not a.tziﬁl. You undarstand that? 3

| HR. MITanLL='¥es. I understand, Mr.
Chairmon.,.

CHAiRMAN HALE: wigh that admonition,
supposing fau just ask whatever questions you have and
I'Ll ask the witness if he'll take the stand again.

MR, CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I would like
to make a suggestion. The members that are present here

or the witnosoes that are present here are under

B

}
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subpoeona, and the Committee i{s entitled to keep them
here until such time es—well, they are here at the
Committee's leisura. The only ones that cen 11 £t the
subpoeha frog tgem would be the Committee itself.

If it would be agreeable with the Committee, I
would pregér to present my case in its entirety and if
Mr. Mitechell would like to ask them questions I would
think it vould then fall into the system that we had

originally discussed, where I would preseat my

vitnesses and then he would present his. He is perfectly

willing or able to call these people as his own
witnesses. Thoy will be here at such time as he wants

to cail them. They are under subpoena. .

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would that be satisfactory,

Mr. Mitchell?

MR, MITCHELL: Whataver éhe pleasure of
the Committec is, certainly. And may I state, Mr.
Chairman, so that my previcus statement doesn't appear
to be & non sequitur, when I stated I did not have
notice, I didn't mean, of course, an advance notice of
vhat the quastions put to the witness would be, or the
ﬁltnoaé's answer. The fact is thaﬁ HSR No. 161 states
ocimply :haﬁ Mz. Carrillo has been indicted by a Grand
Jury of the Unitad States of America on multiple counts

for violations of Pederal Income Tax Law, and it's most

E
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 can shed some light'on 1t 1{f the Chair will permit,

difficult for me to anticipate what the alleged use of a |
backhoe has to do with the indictment by a Federal Grand
Jury of Mr. Carrillo. That's my problem, Mr. Chalrman.
 CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Mitchell, of course,

you understand, ap any Grand Jury, once a Grand Jury
has & complaint and starts an interrogatiom it has
plenary power to go into whatever fields of misconduct
are developed before the Grand Jury, and this Committee
is ian that same position.

MR. MITCHELL: VYes.

CHAIRMAN HALE: We don't know where the
tostimony will lead any more than you do.

MR, MITCHELL: I was aware of that and I

v , _ l
was consaquently faced with o provisfon from Article 5429(

Scetion 7 of Special Committees, which are governed, of |
courge, by tho Resolutions creating such committee, and
bound 5y énd limfted to the wvarbiage in the Resolution.
Consequently, I'm hard-put, if it plesse the Chairman,
to deeaimine p:eeisely how far afield these witnesses
are goihg to go., This is where I'm having my problem.
I em afraid I can't shed any light or assist the
CGEmittée. -

‘MR, CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I think I

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chafrman ié not going
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to allow the testimony to go any further afield than is

 necossary to develop whatever facts there may be con-

cerning any possible misconduct. I think I called to
your attention I believe the Articles 5961—
MR, MITCHELL: Yes. On the removal.

CHAIRMAN HALE: —and the other Articles

undaer Title 100 of the Vernon's Aannotated Civil

Statutes, Mr. Mitchell, with which I'm sure you have
since read, And if you read Article 5962 that the
5ﬂouea, at the time it undertakes that investigation,"”
vhy, it has pretty much plenary power to pursue whatever
lines of fact are developed before the Committee. And
that cextainly has been true in the two iwmpeachment
cages that have been before the Legislature in the last
half cen%uryl |

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, with your
pormission—~— -

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Conales?

MR. CANALES: 1In dealing with violations
of the Internal Revenue, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Mitchell, the
Internal Revenue Code provides that all income from
whatevor source it is derived, be it monetary or
services rendored or whatever;i: is supposed to be
reported and recognized as 1ncema. I believe the

testimony that these people are presenting reflects
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gervices received or benefits recelved, and comsequently

would fall within the purview even i{f that were a
limictation on the particular resolution at hand.

Tho resolution itself is couched in very
broad 1anguhge and the terms of it are merely that a
committee should investigate impeachment against Judge
0., P, Carrillo. And the fact that just one charge
was made in the resolution I don't think would limit the
scope of the investigation itself.

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair certainly
doesn't thiak that this Committee is limited by the
terms of the resolution, Mr. Mitchell.

| MR. MITCHELL: All right.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Once the Committee has
convened under an impeachment resolution it's the
opinion of the Chalr that we have authority to go into
any ocrea that might be the subject of misconduct.

MR. MITCHELL: I have gathered that, Mr.

- Ghairman, but I wvanted to make that observation,

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chalr sees the
responsibility of this Committee to do two things. One,
to'davelop éll facts pertinent to the conduct of the
office of the Judge of the 229th Judicial District, and
1f those focte warrant, it's the task of this Committee

to drav the specificatione and recommend them to the
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House of Represeatatives which would in effect be the i

Grand Jury in this case. ' ;
MR. MITCHELL: And may I make one more

observation and then I'll sit down. This is not—Judge

Carrillo ia not charged with evasion, under 7202, He {is

charged with, under 7206, simply impeding or impairing
or obstructing the Treasury Department in computing or
assessing the tax. Consequently, Mr. Canales'
observation as regards the value conferred by the use of
county equipwent would not be relevant to that 7206
charge, Mr. Chairmaa, | | |
; CHAIRMAN HALE: wéil, with. your permission,

Mr. Mitchell, the Chair feels iﬁ’might be béttex 1f we
pursue aﬁr.ariginal line of 1nquiry here; tﬁat Mr.
Can&ies-we will permit him to present whateéer evidence
he has for the consideration of the Committee that in
cha ép&nian of the Committec io pattihanc to this
inquiry, and faliowipg which, as the Chair hés told you
on more thaon one occasion, we would welcome any or a
sim&;ar prasentation on your part on behalf of your
clienc.

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN HALE: And at that time the
subpocna power of this Committee will be available to

you and your ¢lient in whatever capacity you meed it.
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Then I'l1l put Mr. Chapa on notice that I will
want him back some time next week for some cross
axamination,
CHAIRMAN HALE: That will be fine.
MR. MITCHELL: Thank you.
CHALIRMAN HALE: We will have him here.
Mr. Canales, would you present your next
witness.
| MR. CANALES: Mr. Francisco Ruiz.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you want
to make any—p:aiiminary statement about this witness?
| MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, and membexs of
the Committee, Mr. Francisco Ruiz in previous times, I
don't know if up to this date, but I'm sure he'll
clarify Lt to your liking, was employed by the county
and will testi{fy that he was instructed by, if not O, P,
Carrillo, his brother, R. D,, to work on O. P.'s ranch,
and he will testify to the use and possibly—I get him and
Mr. Saqehei‘ confuged as to their testimony—will testify
to using county equipment which was put at their dis-
posal by 0, P‘VCaryillo.
| | CHAIRMAN HALE: That's fine.
Mr. Ruiz, it 18 my duty as Chairman to advise

you of your rights with reference to your testimony. You
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will be sworn to tell the truth and your failure to do
80 can suhject you to a prosecution for perjury.
After'you have completed your statement, members of the

Committee may ask questions concerning your testimony.

You must answer these quegstions truthfully and your
refusal to do so could subject you to punishment for
contonpt. You can refuse to answer questions only on
the ground that such answers might ineriminate you orx
tend to incriminate you in some way.

You are privileged to have an attorney of your
gseleotion sit with and advise you &8 to your answers if
you desire, The Chair will attempt to protect your
rights at all times,

Do you understand the advice I have given you?

MR. RUIZ: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAR HALE: Are you ready to testify?

HR. RUIZ: Yeo, sir,

CHAIBRMAN HALE: Will you please stand and
raice your right hand.

(The vitness was sworn at this time by
the Chairman.) \

. GHAIBMA& HALE: You may be seated.
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MR, FRANCISCO RUIZ

was called as a witness by the Author and, having been
duly sworn, testified as follows:

CHAIRMAN HALE: Please state your name
and address if you will, pleaae,:for the record.

A My name is Francisco Ruiz, Box 365, Benavides,

Texas.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. You may proceed
with any statement yau have or, Mr. Canales, you may
pursue a question and answer, as you wish.

MR. CARALES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, CANALES \

Q Mr. Ruiz, you live in Benaﬁidea, you say?

A Yes, sir.

Q Would you tell me wvho you are presenely
employed by?

A By the Duval Water District.

Q Who were you employed by previous to being
eéployed by the Water District?

A Duval County.

Q Mr. Ruiz, did you on any occasion work omn a
ranch belonging to Mr., 0. P. Carrillo?

A Yea, air.
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_ ran¢h? ’

Q Were you in the employ of the county at that
time? | Lo

A Yes, sir,

Q Who instructed you, Mr. Ruiz, to go out and
work on Judge O. P, Carrillo's ranch when you were
working for the coua:y?

A Bometimes hls brother, sometimes he would
come over and Ctell me to go to his ranch and work on his
tracteors.

Q Did you think st this time that if you didn't
comply with his request that you would be fired?

4 I :@ink 80.

Q HMr. Ruiz, wae this on one occasion, two

occasions, or was it relatively frequent that you were

askaed to go out and work on Judge 0. P. Carrillo's

A Wall, it was many times.

Q And all this time you were in the émploy of

the county?

A Yes, oir.
Q D&vaudge 0. P, Carrillo ever pay you for the
labaz'yuu,parformed on his ranch?
A Mo, eir.

Q | nta_n. D, Carrillo personally pay you for ahy

- work that you were doing out there on that ranch?
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A
Q

- being usad on Judge 0. P, Carrillo's ranch?

A
Q

up &t the county yard, or how did you acquire itc?

A

every time,

Y- .Y

A -
he called me or Mr. Ramiro Carrxillo sent me I would

drive that county truck to the ranch.

e o

A

velding machine,

Q N

A

Q

A
Q

on Judge 0. P, Carrillo's ranch?

No, sir.

- Six?

,Oh,_naﬁ No. I was‘dr&vtqg the trhck. Whenever

T

Mr. Ruiz, did you ever see amy county vehiclds

Yes, eir., I was driving one.

Who brought you that truck, or did you pick i

I vas working there., I had used that truck
Tha truck vas kept there at the ranch?

fha truck was kept at the ranch?

Where did you pick up the truck?
Right there at the county shop.
Vh&t'dié you do with the truck?

I would’driva it aad puil 8 trailer type

And you did welding work, then?

Yes, oir. | v

Who did the welding machine belong to?
To the county.

What other type of work did you do, Mr. Ruiz,
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A Just welding. That's all.

Q Did you ever get paid by Judge 0. P. Carrillo?
A No, sir.

Q Never?

A (fhe vitness shook his head.)

Q Do you remember sceing any other county

equipment being used on Judge 0. P. Carrillo's ranch
besides the truck that you used and the welding machine?
A Not that I can recall of,
Q  Just those two?
A Just ¢hose two.
MR. CANALES: Mr,. Chsirman, I have no
further questions of this witness.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you.

QUEST1ONS BY THE COMMITTEE
BY CHAIRMAN HALE
Q Arae you cmployed by Duval County?

A Not prosently. I was employed by Duval County.

Kow I_am.employad'by the Duval County Water District.

Q ‘How long have you been with the Water District?
A About:a year. | |

Q ﬁaw much are you padd by the Water Distxict?

A $700.

Q  §7007

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Fo N -

vork for the Water District?

> Lo P O£ >

Q

Yas, sir, i
Par month?

Yes, sir, I'm a welder.

Did you work for Duval County prior to going to

Yes, sir,

As 3 welder?

Yas, sir.

How much were you paid by the county?
Three twenty twenty-fiva.

When vare you first sent out to do work on the

Carrilloc ranch?

A

Whenever I started working for Ramiro Carrillo,

0. P, Carrillo.

Q
District?
A

> L > L

Q

vere sent
A
Q

Was this while you were employed by the Water

No, no.

While you wore employad by the county?

- By the county.

How leng did you work for the county?
8ince 1968 or '69 until the middle of 1974.
Was it during this period of ¢ime that you
put to do work on the Carrillo ranch?

Yes, sir. |

Wha: is the latest time you were sent to do work

"HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A It was some time between January and June of
1974.

Q All of the work that you did out there was

velding work?

A Yes, sir.
Q Did you alweys use county equipment?
A Yes, sir.

Q Did you ever see any other welding eguipment
on the Carxilio ranch?

A Ho. Not while I was out there.

Q What sort of welding work did you do on che‘
Carrillc ranch?

. I worked on the root rakes and the root plow
cnd the caterpillars, tractors.

Q  And the only compensation you ever received
for that was your selary that wvou received from Duval
County? |

A Yes, sir.

Q Is that correct?

A (The witness nodded.)

Q | Did you evor receive any other benefits from
the Carrillo ranech?

A Bo, siz. |

Q  Food?
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16

A PO P O O >

A

Q.

a
qQ

Food.

Gasoline?

No.

Cosh?

-(The witness shook his head.)
Were you ever given any cash?
Hever. |

Did you ever have any employment ralatichship

with the Farm end Raaéh Store?

'ﬁn.
Or the Zertuche General Store?

Ko.

" Heve you ever been in either of those places

of business?

A

I have been in the Farm and Ranch, but I

don't know——

Q
Store?

A
Q

Have you ever been in the Zertuche Genaeral

Ko,
Where 1is it located?
I don't know.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you.
Mr. Maloney?
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BY MR. MALONEY

L0 > Lo 0>

and-—
Q
A
Q

Mr. Ruigz, you were making $325 a month when—
That's take-home pay. Take-home pay.

I beg your pardon?

Toke-home pay.
Take-home pay?

Yes, sir. After deductions for social securitcy

How much was your gross salary?
$375, I guess.

When did you cease receiving that? When did

you stop receiviang $375 a month?

A

Q
April lst

A

Q
county?

A

Q
A

Q

vbiscrict?

A
Q

When I quit working with the county.

Take a guess. Would that have been about
of 19747

No. It was in Jupne or July.

What were your duties &s & welder with the

Raepalr county equipment.

Did you repair county equipment? |
Yas, sir. |

What aro your duties with the Reclamation

I repair their equipment.

About the same type of work?
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Yes, sir.

What is it you do that now makes you worth

$700 a month?

A

Q

correct.

A

o P> L0

Will you repeat that again?

You're now making $700 a month. 1Is that

Yes, sir.
What do you do now that you didan't do before?
Wothing. Just welding. That's all.

Where do you go to work in the morniag?

Where do you report?

> 0 > O OB O P O > o0 >

Q

To the Water District Shop.

Whaere is that?

_Right there in town. Benavides.

Benavides Implgment and Hardware COQpany?
On the Backg thare's another shop.

Whe works with you there?

There are about eight or nine workers.
All of you there?

Yes, six,

On the premises?

Yﬁs. sif; .

Do you ever work for hh@,Bengvideswimplemant

and Hardware Company?

A

No, sir.
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Q Do any of tﬁe Reclamation District employees
work for them?

A Rot that I know of.

Q How many people do they have there working
for them? |

A Where?

Q At the Benavides Implement and Hardware

A Ome, I guess.

Q fa that a very large place?”
: Pratty good size.

Q Thay juot have one employee?
A Yes.

- Q An& there are eight or aine people there of

iy

the Reclamation District?

A Yes.

Q Hov did you come to change your job from
vorking for Duval County and start working for the
Reclemation District?

A I asked for the job and I knew I would get more
money.

Q  Who did you ask for the job?

A The Board mombers.

| Q Who was that, in particular?
A

Gab Raymond and Mr. Canales and Mr. Perez, and
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there's aznother member; I've forgotten his name.
o Had someone quit or did you just: n&ed a job?

|
1
!
A I needed a jab e |
|
i

- Q At the time you appliied for the job were you~ Q{;
still working for the Duval County? i

A Yes, sir. 3
Q You weren't laid off then? g ;
A Mo, sir.
Q Or anything iike that?
A Ho, sir.

.Qwrﬂ Do you do any other work other than warklng

for the Reelamation District?
A No, sir.
Q Do you do anything on anybody else's ranch
row?
A Bo. Except my own,
‘MR, MALONEY: That's all that I have.
CHAIRMAK HALE: Mr. Slack?
MR. SLACK: 1 have no questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks?

BY MR. HENDRICKS
Q Mr. Ruiz, did Judge Carrillo himself e;::\bagg

you out to his ranch or instruct you to go out there?
A Yes, sir. He would come and say, "Will yo

go?" He wouldn't use any force or anything.
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Q. 1 got from your testimony previous that two |
of his brothers were the ones telling you you had to go i
out theore. Did the Judge himself tell you you had to go

out therea?

A He told me quite a8 few times.
Q And he never pald you anything?
A Mo, sir. | |
Q Did he hold any position with the county
gavernmen; that issued you your check, your monthly
check? He wasn't a Commissioner or wasn't the county, was
he?
He asked permission of the County Judge.
Who did you work for, what Commissionex?
Mr. Ramiro Carrillo.

Kis brother?

> O > O >

Yes, sir.

Q Have you ever bought food with these county
checks, or go up and gat food on county checks?

A No, sir.

Q Warrants?

A Ho, sir.

Q Have you ever had a county check that wasn't
made out to yeu that you cashed at the Farm and Ranch
Store?

A Ko.
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Q Have you ever bought cSunty equipment for the
pracinet at the Farm and Ranch Store?
A No.
Q Have you ever bought equipment at the Farm and
Ranch Store for Judge Carrillo?
A No, sir.
MR, HENDRICKS: I believe that's all I
have.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Nabers?
BY MR. NABERS:
- Q Did you ever see any bulldozers out on Judge '
Carrillo’s ranch? |
A Yes, sir.
Q Do you know who they belonged to?
A No, sir.

Q. Have you ever seen a backhoe from the Water

District?
A Wo. | |
QDo you all own & backhoe? Does the Water

District have a backhos?

A  Yes, sir, |

Q Have ‘you e&ér_seen it out on Judge Carrillo's
ranch? | | |

A Not me.

Q What?
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A

Q

Not me.

i'm kind of curious, Mr. Ruiz, why would you

g0 to the ranch and do work out there on the county

equipment? I assume that is what you were working on

out at the ranch is welding on county equipment? 1Is

that righe?

A

Q

> 0 B L0 > L > L0

Not on county equipment.

What were you welding on out there?
On his tractors.

Okay. Farm tractors?

No. Bulldozers.

Bulldozer tractors?

Right.

But you don't know whose they ware?
No, sir.

Why would you go out there, I'm curious to know

vhy you would go out there and work on those tracors?

A

something.

Q

Well, I was afraild I would get fired or

Why would you feel that? Judge Carrillo

couldn't fire you.

A
Q

No. But his brother would,

Okay. So maybe his brother said, "You go out

there and work on Judge Carrillo's ranch." 1Is that

right?
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Water District, have you seen

A He told me a few timas.
Q But you're also saying that Judge Carrillo

teld you to go?

A Yes, sir.
Q Can you remember any specific times?
A No.

MR, NABERS: That's all.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster?

BY MR. KRASTER

Q Mr. Ruiz, since you have been working for the

people's property or on other jobs other thanm just the

Water District jobs?

A Ro.

Q In the year since you've been there it's only

boen usaed in the towa there?

Just on the jobs, on the Water District.

Q Yhan you wore working for the county did you

ever go to anybédy else's ranches and weld their

equipmanc?

A Ro.
Q The only raamch you ever went to and welded—

A I uoed to go to the Commiseioner's ranch.and

Q Anybody else's ranch in the entire county?

that backhoe used on other
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A No.
Q Do you know if the county ever had any

equipment that was used on anybody else's ranch other

than just the Commissioner's or Judge Carrillo's?

A

Q

uged or équip@@nc used—

A
Q

ranches ?

A
Q

No.

You mean there was never any road graders

Yes.

There was? Did they grade roads on guys'

Yes, sir.

Did thase ever bresk down and you would go

and weld them?

A

VoI - -

Yes, sir.

So you did weld on other people's places?

Yes, siy,

That was county equipment?

Yao, sir.

And they were doing some kind of work out

there and it pould break and they would call you to

come weld it, or how did that work? How did you know to

go out and weld it? Did somebody tell you to go out

and fix the equipment?

A

Q

Sure.

And you would go wherever they told you. You I‘
|

Cuu

|
=5
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wotild just go ahead and weld 1t?

A Yes, sir.

Q So you went on places other than Judge
Carrillo's to weld equipment?

A Like I say, on the Commissioner's ranch.

Q Just the Commissioner's ranch, or oﬁher
people®’s ranches?

A No, not other people. No. _

Q Well, I'q confused then because I thought youi
Just got through saying that there was equipment used
building roads or doing something on other people's
places and if they broke down you had to go weld it.

A They don't break very often, you know, not
all the time. They go close to somebody place and
they don't break. I have seen them in other places.

Q The road graders and stuff?

A Yes, sir,

Q Were the road graders ever used at the
Carrillo's ranch?

A Yes, sir.

Q And it was used at other people's ranches too?

A Not on other people's.

Q The road grader was not ever used on anybody
else's ranch?

A No.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN TEXAS

3
|

i




6

Lo~

9
10
11
i2
13
14
15

16

17

Ruiz 2-132

MR. KASTER: Okay.

CHAIRMANR HALE: Mr. Donaldson?

BY MR. DOHALDSON

Q

About Benavides Hardware, are you familiar

with that p)ace?

A

> 0 PP o O L

bolts.

o > o > o

building.
Q
materials
A
Q

Benavides Hardware? Yes, sir.
Have you been in there often?
Yes, air,

What do they sell?

Hardware.

What kind of hardware?

Barbed wire, ropes, wire cutters, bolt cutters)

Is it a big store?

Yes. Bigger than this.

Bigger.than this-room?

About tho size of thia ?uilding.'
Whexe 18 the Water Reclamation office?

Right on the back, in an office in that

Does the Water Reclamation District have
and supplies and everything stored there?
Just the janitor gsupplies.
Just the janitor gupplies?

Yes, sir.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Where do you get your welding materials?
From Crane Welding Supplies.

Do you buy those yourself?

Yes, sir. And I sign a ticket.

You sign a ticket to the Water District?

O O L L0

Yesg, sir.
Q But {t's your testimony that Benavides Hardwa?eg
Supply has a big inventory of hardware, barbed wire, %

ropes and that kind of thing?

Yes.

Do they sell cement?

No, sir, .

A
Q
A
Q Do they sell stuff to the county?
A I don't know.
Q Do they sell stuff to the Water District?
A Yes.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney?
BY MR. LANEY

Q Where did you say you bought your welding

supplies when you worked for the county?

A Crane Welding Supplies.

Q Did you buy those supplies yourself? I mean
did you sign a ticket'for the county?

A For the Water District. I worked for the

Water District.
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Q@ © For the Water District. Yes, now, but I mean

when you worked for the county, and you welded for the
county, right? You were a-welder for the county?

A When I worked for the county I 'never signed
& bill for the welding matertal.

Q Whare did you get your welding rods and
things like that? |

A I got them from Crane, but Mr. Cleofus
Consalez was the ond that signéd the tickets.

‘Q He signed the tickets for you?

A Yes.

Q Is this in the same town, this Crane Welding

- A Oh; no. It's from Aliée.

Qv~, Thie vwoldimg supply firm, did they deliver

you ecetylene and oxygen ané stuff?
| A | Rods .

Q And they delivered it to you there in
Bonavides?

A Yeso.

Q Did you use this material, the acetylene and
welding vods ond stuff like ﬁhat, did you uge this on
the Judge's rench?

a Yas, sir.

MR. LANEY: No further questions.

[ER——
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson?

BY MS. THOMPSON | i

Q

Farm and Ranch Store?

A

> L > L0

Q

sold any there?

A

Q

come into his ranch? |

A

Chairman.

BY MR. CHAVEZ

Q

with the Judge last yeax?

A
Q

Yes, sir.

Mr. Ruiz, you said that you have gone into the

Yes, ma'anm.

Have you ever bought any marijuansa there?
Bought any what?

Marijuana there.

No. I don't smoke it.

Do you know whether or not the Judge has ever

Ro.

Or whether or not he has ever gotten any to

I don't know.
MS. THOMPSON: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington?

MS. WEDDINGTON: No questions, Mr.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez?

Mr. Ruiz, did you also break politically

So that you and Ruben Chapa and Cheofus

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Conzalex and all these other fellows broke with the \

Judge politically?

A Yes, sir.

Q These other gentlemen that were given
subpoenas here toanight, they also broke with the Judge
politically?

A 1 guess so.

Q Octavio— 1 forgot his last name.

A I doa't know.

Q’ Well, 1£ they were on your side politically
you would know, would you'not?

A (No response.)

Q Would you, or not?

A Yes.

Q Are they on your side?

A I guess so.

Q Haveiyou appeared before & Grand Jury to
tésciﬁy?

A No, sir.

é Nobody has asked you? Yon're not undef
subpoena? |

A No, sir.

Q You don't have a criminal récord or anything
like that?

A No.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Q This thing that you're doing here ﬁonight,
this isn't politically motivated? . é
A I don't think so. :
Q Back when all these things that you were doing,i
these things on county time and county pay, did you N
know that this might be wrong?
A Yes. |
Q Did you ever report it to anybody?

A Ko.

Q Was it the commonly accepted thing for count
employees to go to the Judge's ranch and do work for
him on county time and on county pay?

A Yas, sir.

| Q Do you know if the other County Cémmissioners
and the County Judge knew that this was going on?

.A I don't know.

Q Well, certainly Ramiro Carrillo knew that this

was going on, did he not?

A Sure. He was the Commissioner from the
precinct.

Q Did you do work on Ramiro's ranch also? }

A Yes. f

Q Did you do any on the Judge's——on Judge Parr's?|

A No. I went one weekend one time.

Q Did you get paid extra for that?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE"
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BY MR, CANALES

A Yes, sir.
Q But you say that what you and these other
fellows are délagmﬁéféwiéwhbt“ﬂéiigiéaiiy-Qotivated?

A I don't think so.

Q Well, of course, you're the only one that
knows; I don't. You say you think, I mean are you sure,
or don't you know?

A T don't know.

MR, CHAVEZ: That's all, Mr. Chairman.

Thenk you.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there further
questions of this witness?

{No response.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you
have anything further of this witness? |

MR, CANALES: Just two brief questions,

Mr. Chairman,

Q I would like to know 1if he knows Tomas
Elizondo, the man we have been discussing here previously?
A Yes, sir, I know him, : |
Q Have you ever seen him working on Judge 0. P.
Carrillo's ranch?
A Yes,

Q On occasions, or frequently, or as a general

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN TEXAS



9
10

1

16
17
18
19
20
21

22

Ruiz —4-139

rule he was always there?

A Mogtly every time I weant out thare to pick
up those tractors he was there.

Q What was he doing out there?

A Just kind of pushing the people around, you
know.

Q Do you know who he was—

A I mean pushing the people, you know,.taking
care of people that they do their work.

Q Do you know who Mr. Elizondo is emp1oyed by?

A No, sir.

- Q Do you know of anybody else that might have
worked with the county that was working out on Judge
0. P, Carrille's ranch?

A No, sir.
MR. CANALES: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Anything further with
this witness?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: Thank you very much,

A Thank you, sir.

(The witness, Mr. Francisco Ruiz, was

excused,)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you want to call your

next witness, Mr. Canales.

i
|
1
|
|
i
i
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MR. CANALES: I would like to call Mr.

Oscar Sanchez. Eis testimony would be similar to this

and the only thing I would ask for the Coumittee, I

will not ask him any questions. His testimony will be

similar. I£ you want to, the testimony was offered
befors and I'm sure the Committee can go . 5
through it asking their own questions and save my time.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Did he work out on the
Carrillo ranch also?

MR. CARALES: Yes. The only thing is
I would like the-Committee to consider the fact that he
is not that proficient in English and need to put
the questions slowly to him so he can well understand
them,

MS. THOMPSON: I would like to ask the
Chair & question.

CHAIRMAN HALE: bid we get an Interpreter?
Call and see 1f we can get the young lady up here. We
have a young lady who is— I think it might be better
if we had the young lady here in case there is anything
he doesn‘t underétand in Engligh, Mr, Canales, and we '
can have it translated. |

MR, CARALES: And as far as I'm concerned%f
the Chair could pose the quastions. They are similar

to the ones bafore, if he has ever worked out there and

\
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if he has ever seen snyone workiang out there with county
equipment. It's the same story.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Sanchez, you may be
seated. Do you understand English?

MR. SANCHEZ: Just a very little.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Very little.

We want to be completaly fair with everybody
here and it might be better to have an interpreter.
Would you feel better to have it:interpreted in
SPQaigh? : !

MR. SANCHEZ: Yes.

CHAIRMAN HALE: I think it would be
desirable.

MR, ¢ Mr. Rene Ramirez is
proficient in Spanish and English., He might be able to
help us out.

| MR. RAMIREZ: 1'll be glad to help out.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you be willing to
help us on this thing? Could you come forward, if you
would?

What is your name, please?

MR. RAMIREZ: Rene Ramirez.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Rene Ramirgi, Fine.

Mr. Remirez, will yeulbe sworn then, I want

to swear you as an interpreter for this Committee.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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(The witaceps was sworn through the
intérpreter by the Ghalrman at this time.)

CHAIRMAR HALE: Would you be seated.

MR. OSCAR SANCHEZ
was called as a witness by the Author and, having been ‘
duly s-org, testified as follows:

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Remirez, I'll read
this and wiil you interpret it to him.

Mr. Sanchez, it's my duty as Chafirman to
adgise you of your rights with reference to your
testimony ,

- Would you speak loud enough, Mr. Ramirez, so

that we can all here, if you don't mind.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CBAIRMAN HALE: You will be sworn to tell
the ttuch.

| MR, RAMiREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE& And your failure to do
80 could subject you to a prosecution for perjury.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.) ’

CHATRMAN HALE: After you have campleted‘
your statement, Members of the Committee may ask questions

concerning your testimony.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

HICKMAN REPCRTING SERVICE
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CHAIRMAN HALE: You must answer these
questions truthfully.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: And your failure to do
8o could subject you to punishment for contempt.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: You can vefuse to answer
questions only on the ground that such answers might
incrimin2te you.

MR, RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Or tend to incriminate
you in some way.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: You are privileged to have
an attorney of your selection sit with and advise you
48 to your answers.

MR, RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: 1I£ you desire.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: The Chair will attempt to
protect your rights at all times.

MR. RAMIREZ: (Ianterprets.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you understand the
advite I have given to you?

MR, RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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-

CHA IRMAN HALE: Are you now ready to testify
MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

Sir, he says that he understands that,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you sclemnly swear that

the testimony you will give on matters pending before the

 Committee will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing

but the truth, so help you God?
A Yes, gir.

CHAIRMAN HALE: You may be seated,

MR. CANALES: Mr., Chairman, {f I may sugges
to the Committee, to expedite matters, the questions can
be put to the witness. If he understands it, I would
suggest that he answer it. If he hés trouble understand-
ing, theg'we can employ the interpreter, if the Comuittee
o wishes.

| CHAIRMAN HALE: 1Is that satisfactory with
you?

MR. RAMIREZ: (Interprets.)

) A All right,

BY CHAIRMAN HALE

Q 1f you don't understand any of these questions,
you ask Mr. Ramirez to tell you in Spanish.

A Okay.

Q Will you do that?

R4
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A Yes, sir.

MR. MALONEY: Before we get into the

testimony— I don't know Mr. Reamirez. Could he introduce |

himpelf to the Committee?

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Ramirez, where do you |

live? ;
MR, RAMIREZ: I live in Austin, sir. 1 amg
originally from Hebbronville, Texas, 26 miles from
Benavides, Texas. I live here in Austin now.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Could I ask a question?
Did you play football for the University of Texas at one
time?

MR, RAMIREZ: About three years ago.

57, '8 and '9., VYes, sir., (Laughter.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr., Maloney seems con-
cerned 8¢ to why you are here, Were you just accidentally
harevan 8 spectator? Do you have any interest in this
proceading, Mr. Ramirez? |

MR. RAMIREZ: I am curious, sir. 1 am

just curious 88 to what's going on. I know 8 lot of the
p@opim involved i{n this thing. I &m not going to follow
any trucke or trailers, but I am just here for the fun.

CHAIRMAN HALE: All right.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY CHAIRMAN HALE

Q

Mr. Sanchez, for the record, would you please

state your name and address?

A

Texas.

Q
A
Q
A

Q

My name is Oscar Sanchez, Box 502 Benavides,

Are you employed at the present time?
Employed for the Water District.

For?

For the Water District.

For the Water District? 1Is that the Duval

County Conservation and Reclamation District?

A

Q
A

Yes, sir.
What work do you do for the District?

I juat work on the backhoes. That's all the

jobs there are.

> O 0>

fo)

How much are you paid?
$600.
Sir?
$600,

$600 a month. How long have you worked for the

Water District?

4
Q

About & year,

Where did you work before you worked for the

Water District?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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> 0 > O > L >

County?

> O > O % P

Q

Diserict?
N
Q

Duval County.

How long did you work for Duval County?
Well, I don't remember.

Many years?

Yoo, sir.

Sir?

Yes, sir.

What were you paild when you were working for Duvgl

$275.

What type of work did you do for Duval County?
Operator,

0f what?

0f & bulldozer or heavy equipment.

Heavy cquipment operator?

Yee, oir,

Did you do scimilar type of work for the Water

8ir?

Did you do that same type of work for the

Woter District?

A
Q
Ranch?

' A

on the backhoe, %Yes, sir.

All right. Have you evor worked on the Carrillo

Well, sometime.

e e b < itk
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Q
A
Q
A
did that.

Q
A

Q

ranch?

When wag the last time?
Well, I don't remember.
Recently?

Well, about 1971, I guess was the last time I

Who told you to work on the Carrillo ranch?
Well, the Commissioner, Mr. Ramiro Carrillo.

What type of work did you do on the Carrillo

'MR. RAMIREZ: On the water tank, sir. He

wda butlding a8 water reservoir., Dig out the dirt, you know.

Q

> Lo B o >

County?

A

Q

Did that involve heavy equipment.?

Sir?

Did you use heavy equipment on that work!?
Yes, sir.

Where did you get the heavy equipment?
From the County.

Was the equipment owned by the County?
Yes, sir,

This was while you were employed by Duval

Yes, sir.

Did Judge Carrillo ever tell you to go out

on the ranch and perform any work?

A

No. He didn't ask me, but his brother told me.
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there?

>

did on

vork——

© > o > 0 > o > O

Vo - -

Ramiro carrilio?

Yes, sir.

Does ha hold any position in the government

Who?

Ramiro garriilo?

Yes. He is Cammiésioner.
What is he?

He wag & commissiéuer there,

County Ceummisaionor?

':Yea; gir,

" What Precinct?

Thraa., Precinet Three.

Did you recelve any pay for the warkvwhich you
the Carzillc ronch?

No,; e&r;

Did Judge C&rrilla‘aver pay you &ny money?
No, sir. Kot that I romembor,

pid Romire corrillo ever pay you any money?
No. |

Did you receive any other benefits for this

-No, sir,

—such a8 food, gnsoline, tires?

Nb, sir,
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Q No other compensation of any kind?

A No, sir.

Q The only compensation you received during that
period of time waps §275 a month that you were paid by
Duval County?

A Yes, sir.

Q 1s that corroct?

A Yes, pir.

Q Hovw many times 4id you perform work om the
Carrillo xonch?t

A Maybe o couple of times, two times. That's all,

Q And the 1ldst one was in 19710

A Yes, oir.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney.
BY KR, MALONEY

Q Hr. Sanchnz; you work: : £§r tha Reclamation
District aou?

A Yos, oie.

Q Do you do any other vwork, othor than work on the
Reclamntion Districe?

A Yherce I @m vorking now? No, sir.

Q Do you Tork on a2ny one else's property?

A Ko, sir, | |

Q Are you paid by anyone else?

A ﬁo; sir. |

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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BY MR, HENDBICKS
Mr. Saachaga this heavy equipment, does that

Q

use diesel?

A

- Q

from the County?

A
Q

go by and
A

vanch.,

0 O O > O

Q

District backhoe on the Judge's ranch?

A
Q

~ Some uge gasoline on it.

MR. MALONEY: That's all that I have,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr., Slach?
MR, SLACK: 1 have no questions.

CHBAIBMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks?

Yea, sir.

The diesel in the ms8chine, did you get that

Did they bring the diassel to you, or did you
get the fuel before you went to the ranch?

We would get the fuel before we went to the

And it was County fuel you were using?

Yes, sir.

Did you ever operate this County's backhoe?
The County?

The County backhoe?

Yes, Ihe_County'a got & backhoe, too.

Did you ever operate the Benavides School

Not on the Judge's ranch.

Not on the Judge's ranch?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A No, sir.

!

Q Do you operate that backhoe now for the nenavidés

School Disgtrict? Do you operate it now?

A Yes, I operate it,

Q A8 part of your job now?

A Yes, sir,

Q Have you ever used it on any other property--

MR, CANALES: 1I think he is confusing
your guestion.
MR. RAMIREZ: For the Vater District,
A Not the school district,

Q Have you ever seen the Benavides School

District backhoe used on anybody's prbperty, other than—

A The Bensvides School District doesn't own a
bsckhoe.
Q - Dooes the Water District own a backhoe?

Has it been used off the Water District property?

A
Q
A Not that I know of.
Q Not to your knowledge?
A No, sir,

Q - Have you ever bought any equipment, county
equipment at Farm and Ranch Store and charged it to the
County?

A Not that I know of. No, sir,
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Q Have you ever bought any equipment for Judge
Carrillo at Farm and Ranch Store?
A No, sir,
Q Have you ever cashed any checks made out to
some other individurl at the Farm and Ranch Store?
A No, sir,
Q Have you ever been given food voucherskfor
the County?
A  Ro, sir.
MR. HENDRICKS: That's all I have.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Nabers?
MR, NABERS: No questions,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster?
BY MR, KASTER
Q Mr. Sanchesz, how long did you work for the
County? ;
A Since 1961 to 1973, I balieve,
Q Eleven or twelve years you worked for them?
A Yes, sir,
Q Did you ever build a8 tank on anybody else's
ranch with the equipment?
A No.
Q Did you ever do any work on anybody else's
ranch in that area, like—

A No.

Sanchaz 2 183
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The only ranch you ever worked on——
I-—just the two times on that tank. That's all,
Pardon me?

Just that water tank in there. That's all.

Vol SV Y~

And that was all?
MR, KASTER: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Donaldson?
BY MR, DONALDSON
Q Did you go to work for the HWater District in
April of '747
A No, maybe in June, I believe.
Q It was in 19747
A '74, That's right.
MR. DONALDSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr., lLaney?
MR. LANEY: Pass.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Thompson?
MR. THOMPSON: 1 pass.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms., Weddington?
MS. WEDDINGTON: No questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Chavez?
BY MR. CHAVEZ
Q ﬂr. Sanchez, it seemsg that most of these other
fellows also that have testified before you, also work

for the County and then some¢time around April; May, June,
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they started leaving the County?

A Uh hubh.
Q Were you laid off or were you fired?

A No, sir. I quit the County.

Q Did you get involved in this polikical réice wit

Mr, Chapa?
& No, sie.
Q Politics didn't have anything to do with that?

A Ro.

Q it seems to me like I read somewhere that— Do

you remember me asking Mr. Chapa about this political
split of the parties?

A Yes.

o It seems to me that there was also, 1 read
somewhere, 8 split within the Carrillo family. 1Is that
right?

A A split with the Carrillo family?

Q Yeg. Even within the Carrillo family, when
this break took place—and I am just trying to remember
this from what I have read in the papers. It seems
like the Parrs and the Carrillos broke.

A Well, m8ybe the Carrillos and Parrs. I don't
know about the Carrillo family.

Q All the Carrillo family stayed together?

A Probably,
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Q Do you know, or not?
A I don't know if they stayed together or not.
Q Some of the nephews are over there in the Water

District, aren't they?
A No. They used to work there.

Q Are any of the Board members related to the

| Carrillos?

A Not that I know of. |

Q That's a 1little political-—-the other party that
hag control of that district?

A . The other party.

Q Most of these fellows that worked for the County
and then left there and went with the Water Digtrict—

A Yes, air.

Q —and you that were working with the Coﬁnty
were making, it seems to me, real low salaries, $275,
$325 and something like thag? |

A Yes, sir.

Q And then you go to work for the other District,
that is controlled by this other political party, and all
of @8 sudden your salaries go up about two or three
hundred dollars?

A Uh huh., Yes, sir.

Q That's why I have been asking these fellows

about whether or not all this 18 a political fight, the

4
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political rivairy. 1Is this why you are here too? §
A i don't know. 1It's not political, |
Q You are here because‘you were asked to come to
give testimony?
A Yes, sir.
Q And you don't have anything personally against
the Judge, or anything like that?

A No, sir,

MR, CRAVEZ: Tiank you very much, Mr,
Sanches. |
CHAIRMAN HALE: Arxe there further questions?
Mr. Hendricks? i
BY MR, HENDRICKS
Q One. If all of the former County employees are
now wérkins for the Water District, where are the former
Water District employees? Are they working for the

County now?

A I don't know where thaey are working at.

(Laughter.)
CHAIRMAN HALE: Any further questions? f
(No response.) ;
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, do you have
anything further from this witness?
BY MR, CANALES

Q I would simply like to @sk the witness whether
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he saw any people or any other Duval County equipment

.
!
é
!

out on the ranch while you were in the process of workingi

out there?
A Only maintainers. That's &ll I saw.
Q County maintainers?
A That's right.
Q Did you see any people that were employed by

the County working out there?

A No.

Q Do you know Tomas Elizondo?

A Yes. I know him.

Q Did you see Tom#s Elizondo out there?

A No, sir, He was probably somewhere else, but

I didn't see him while I was working there.

CHAIRMAN HALE: VWould you speak into the
hike, plaase, Mr. Sanchez; so that the Reporter can get
your testimony?

| Q You didn't see any other County employees
working out there? |
A ;Not the day when I wis working there.
Q- Who was driving the ﬁaintainer that belonged
to the County?
A Probably the one operator, operating all the
time.

Q pid you know him?

i
{
H

i
t
1
1
i
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Carlos Herrera, Yes, sir.

Carlos Herrera?

Yes, sir.

He was working for the County, too!?

Yes, sir.

MR, CANALES: Thank you. I have no

further questions.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine., Thank you very much

for your testimony,

(The witness, Mr. Oscar Sanchez, was excused.,)

CHAIEMAN HALE: Mr, Canales, do you have a

wi;gess we could finish in ten or fiftéen minutes? Or

are your witnesses going to be much longer than that?

MR, CANALES: Mr. Chairman, the next

witness 1 anticipated calling was Mr. Rodolfo Couling

and I have no idea how long his testimony will be,

because Mr. Couling 1is accompénied by coungel and the

questions I have put to him have been very brief. Maybe

his couﬁael has advised him not to answer the questions.

I don't know.

I would imagine it would be very brief.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Shall we take him?
THE COMMITTEE: Yes.

CHAIRMAK: You may call your next witness.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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MR, ORR: Mr. Chairman, I am Charles Orr.

1 am an attorney in practice in Houston. My address is
609 Fannin, Suite 629,

CHAIRMAN HALE: Charles Orr? OQwxr-r?

MR. ORR: Yes. Initial E, and 1 represent .

Mr. Couling, the witness,

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. We are delighted to
have you here, counsel.

MR, ORR: Thank you, sir.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Couling, it is my
duty és Chairmean, to advise you of your rights with
refereuca'to'your testimony. You will be sworn to tell
the.truth, and your failure to do so could subject you

to prosecution for perjury.

After you have completed your statement, members

of the Committee may ask questionse concerning your
testimony. You must answer these questions truthfully.
Your refusal to do so, could subject you to punishment
for contempt. You can refuse to answer questions only
on the ground that such answers might incriminate you
or tend td incriminate you in some way., You &re

privileged to have an attorney of your selection sit

with you and advise you as to y ur answers, if you desire.|

The Chair will attempt to protect your rights

at all times.
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Do you understand the advice I have given you? i
MR. COULING: Yes, sir. i
CHAIRMAN HALE: Are you now read; to
testify?
MR, COULING: Yes, sir,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Would you plesse stand and

be sworn.

{The witness was gworn by the Chairman.)

MR, RODOLFO M, COULING
wag called as a witness by the Author, and being firsct
duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, HALE

.‘Q For the reacord, would you please state your
néns and your address? |
A Rodoifo M. Couling. Drawer "M", Beravides,
Tenas,

CHAYRMAN HALE: Fine. Mr. Canales, do you
have a prepared sta&tement or do you went to proceed with
questions and.ansvers?

MR, CANALES: Mr, Chairman, this men's
ansvers will be as completely impromptu, as fa8r ags I am
concerned as it will be for the Committee. I have no

iden, and I would like to take him on cross before the
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Committee takes him.

CHATRMAN HALE: You may ask whatever

“t
'

i
|

*

questions. We won't go into whether it's direct »r cross.

CROSS5 LXAMINATION

BY MR, CANALES

Q

Mr. Couling, vou state that you have lived or

you live in Benavides?

A

Q
A
Q
A

Yes, sir.

How long h&ve you lived there, Mr. Couling?
Close to fifty years. |

what business are you engaged in, Mr. Couling?

On a&dvice of my counsel, I respectfully claim

the privilege accorded to me by the Fifth Amendment of

the United States Constitution, Article I, Section 10 of

Q

4

‘the State of Texas and decline to answer on the zrcund

tha t my &nswer might tend to incriminate me.

Mr. Couling, do you own the Benavides Implement

"a8nd Hardware Store?

I claim the same privilege.

MS., THOMPSON: Mr., Chairman, would you ask

him to speak into the microphone.

CHAIRMAN HALE: 1I1f you would, Mr. Couling,

spéak into the mike, so we can hear you.

A

Yés, sir,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS



6

~3

10

11

13

14

1s

Couling - cxoss B L 2-163

Q Mr. Couling, do you know where the Benavides
Impleéement and Hardware Store is?
A I'm sorry. I still claim the samne privilege,

Q That it would tend to incriminate you?

A Yes, sir.

Q 1f you knew where the Benavides Implement and é
Hardware Stove was? |

& (No response.)

Q Do you know Mr. Cleofas Gonzalez?

A I still claim the same privilege, sir.

Q Eave‘you ever heard of the Zertubhelceueral Stor%?

A I still claim the same privilege, !

Q Mr. Couling, where do you bank?

A I still claim the same privilege,

Q It would tend to incriminate you Lf you disclosed

what bank you made your deposits in? \

A I still claim the same privilege.
(Conference with counsel,)

A In the First State Bank of 3an Diego. '

Q You bank at the First 3tate Bank of 5an Diego.
Mr. Couling, have you ever held any political
or elected offices?
A I still claim the same—
MR. ORR: Answer that guestion.

A No, sir,

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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Q Is there & high school in Benavides, Texas, :
Mr. Couling? f

A 1 still claim the same privilege.

Q It would incriminate you to admit there is a
high school in Benavides?

A Yes, sir. There is &8 high school thers in
Benevides. :

Q Do you know Judge 0. P. Carrille?

A Yes, sir.

Q How long have you known Judge O. P, Carrillo? g

A I 8till claim my same privilege. |

Q It would incriminate you to disclose to this

Committee how long you have known Judge O. P. Carrille?

A Yes, sir. : g
Q Is there a water district ipn and surrounding i
Benavides?

A I still claim the same privilege.

Q Mr. Couling, have you ever written any checks

payable from you personally or from the Benavides

Implement and Hardware to & .Zertuche General Store?
A I still claim the same privilege. |
Q Mr, Couling, have you ever given any checks

or cash or any other type of currency to Mr. 0. P, |

Carrillo? j

A I still claim my same privilege. ¢ 1ncriminatin#

!
N
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myself.

Q It would incriminate you to state that you
have given—

A I still claim the same privilege.

Q Mr. Cewling, do you have a checking account
in the Rio Grande City Bank?

A I still claim the same privilege.

Q It would incriminate you to tell this
Committee if you had & checking account in the Rio
Grande State Bank?

A I still claim the same privilege.

Q D> you know if there is a bank imn Rio Grande
Cilcy?

A I still claim the same privilege.

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, it proved to
be a very short examination, and I have no further
questions.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine.

Mr. Orr, let the Chalr state to you that the
Chair has been advised of the sensitive situation of
your client, and we are sympatheﬁic with his problem.

Could I ask you a question? I assume in view
of the responses to the questions that have been asked
by Mr. Canales that your advice to your client is going

to be the same on any questions propounded by members of

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS




(]

PN

G

~i

Couling - cross U S L

the Committee, 1Is that correct?

MR. ORR: Any questiong along the same
lines, Mr. Chairwman.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir.

I ask you that in an attempt to shorten our

proceeding here., There is no point in us going through

a large number of questions and getting a refusal to

answer on the grounds of incrimination on every . one of

‘them, as we don't have any desire to subject your client

to any more embarrassment than necessary.

MR. ORR: Yes. Well, of course, I cannot

advise him to refuse to answer any questions, period, tha

the Committee might ask.
CHAIRMAN HALE: I understand.
Mr. Couling, let the Chair ask you one or two

questions, and you may amswer them or not.

QUESTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE
BY CHAIRMAN HALE
Q D6 you now, or did you at any time, hold an
official positiod in any governmental agency in Duval
County?

A Yes, sir.

|
i
l
!
i

!
N

:

i
!
i
i
|
i
]
|
1
|

MR, ORR: Would you ask the question agaiﬁj

pleace, six?

i
']
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Q D6 you .nmow hold an official position in any
goveramental agency in Duval County?

A Not now.

Q Have you ever held an official position in any
governmental agency?

MR, ORR: Mr. Chairxman, might I have a
clarificetion? You're going behond an elacted pésition.
Is that the thrust of your question?

CHAIRMAN HALE: Yes, sir. Did he ever

hold any type of officiel position there? I'm told he

wag & tax collector at one time for one of these agencies.

A Yes, sir.
Q Is that true?
A Yes, sir.
Q Which agency?
A Benavides Independent School District.
Q Benavides Independent School District. You
were appointed to that and not elected.
A Yag.
Q Is that correct?
A Yes.
Q Who makes that appointment?
A I claim the same privilege, .sir.
Q Were you paid for that service?
A Yes, sir.
HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE o
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Q Were you paid a monthly salary, or was it on a
per work basis?

A By the month, sir. ]

Q By the month. How long did you hold this
position?

A Since 1962 until this year.

Q 19757

A Yes, sir.

Q When did you terminate this employment

relationship with the Benavides Independent School

District?
A I claim the same privilege, sir.
Q Pid you resign this position, or were you

terminated by your employer?

A I still cleim the same privilege.

Q During the time you were working for the
Benavides Independent School District, w@s that a
full-time occupation for you?

A Yes, sir.

Q During the period of time that you were

working for the Benavides Independent School District,

did you receive any compensation for services rendered
from any other source other than the Benavides Independenﬂ
School District?

A I claim the same privilege, sir.
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Q Did you ever perform any services of a

business or a professional nature for Judge 0. P.

Carrillo?
A I claim the same privilege, sir,
Q Did you ever perform any business or pro-

fessional services for a business entity known as Farm
and Ranch Store?v

A I claim the same privilege, sir.

Q Did you ever perform any business or pro-
fessional services for a business entity known as
Zertuche General Store?

A I still claim the same privilege, sir.

- CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Maloney?
MR. MALONEY: If I may, 1 woulq like to
direct my question to counsel. I8 your client under a
formal accusation?
MR, ORR: No, he is not.
MR, MALOKNEY: I have no questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE:' Mr. Slack?
MR. SLACK: 1 have no questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Hendricks?
MR. HENDRICKS: Just one question.
BY MR. HENDRICKS
Q Is there currently a store licensedin your

name in the State of Texas?

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
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A I claim the same privilege, sir,.
MR. HENDRICKS: No questions,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr, Nabers!?
BY MR. NABERS
Q  Are you under subpoena to this Committee
tonight?
A Yes, sir.
Q Where were you when that subpoena was issued?

A Would you repeat the question?

Q Were you gserved with your subpoens here in
Austin?
A Yes, sir.

Q Why were you here in Austin?
A I just happened to come along with the rest of
the boys that came over.

Q Were you planning on testifying before this

Committee?
A I had not ;onsulted with my attorney.
Q Sir?
A; I had not consulted with my attorney.
Q Oh, you hadn‘t consulted with your attorney

when you came to austin?
A (The witness shook his head.)
Q Since that time you have consulted with him

and obtained his advice. 1Is that correct?
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A Yes, sir,

Q You had planned to testify to this Commnittee

‘prior to consultation with your attorney. Is that

correct?
A No, sir.
Q You just came along for the ride?
A Yes, sir.
MR. NABERS: No further questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Kaster?
BY MR. KASTER
Q Mr. Couling, do I understand you came ﬁo

Austin and then after you received the subpoena then you

consulted with your attormey. 1Is that correct?

A Yes, sir,
ﬂR. KASTER: Thank you,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Donaldson?
BY MR. DONALDSON
Q Had you employed counsel prior to the time you
were sexrved with the subpoena?
A Yea,/sir.

Q Have you been subpoenaed by any other

investigative body?

A I decline to answer., I claim my same privilegej

sir.

Q Have you given testimony before any other
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investigative body?
A I claim the same privilege.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Laney?
MR. LANEY: No questions.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Thompson?
MS. THOMPSON: I pass.
CHAIRMAN HALE: Ms. Weddington?
MS. WEDDINGTON: No questions,
CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez?
MR. CHAVEZ: Mr. Chairman, I would like

to direct é question to counsel.

You haven't appeared with him at some
éroceedlng before this, and if so, if he has been
interviewed or given testimony, hasn't he in fact waived
his privilege? |

MR. ORR: I think the answer would be

'“No . [}

MR. CHAVEZ: Ro to which one?

MR. ORR: No to whether he has waived
any privilege by any conceivable appearance before any
body other than this Committee.

MR, CHAVEZ: Has he been interviewed by
the Attorney General's Office?

MR. ORR: 1I'm going to decline to answer

that on the ground of attorney-client privilege.

HICKMAN REPORTING SERVICE
AUSTIN, TEXAS




-

[}

~1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Couling . 2-173

go into matters that would be covered by the attorney-

MR, CHAVEZ: I'm not asking about whether |
or not or whéc hic testimony might have been. I'm just
agking whether or not—

MR. ORR: 1 understand.

MR. CHAVEZ: -~—you appeared at that
certain place to speak with a representative of the
Attorney General's office or the U. S. Attorney's %
office. |

MR. ORR: You see, my problem is that

1 feel your line of questioning might go to, by

enumerating the various entities that he might have

discussed something with, that by that process you would

client privilege, and I feel that I should invoke 1t at
this point. | |

MR, CHAVEZ: Well, but if—

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Orr, would you pull
the mike over, please.

MR. CHAVEZ: If he has appeared before aomé
investigative body or some officer with counsel, or even
without counsel, I think, and has been warned about his
rights and has in fact given testimony, are you telling
us that that testimony is not available to us?

MR. ORR: I certainly am not.

MR. CHAVEZ: Then why wouldan't you be in
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& position to tell us whether or not he has appeared
before somebody?

MR. ORR: I don't believe that I as his

attorney should be required to state where he might have

given testimony or where he has not.
MR. CHAVEZ: Then 1I'll ask him.
BY MR. CHAVEZ
Q Mr. Couling, have you or have you not spoken
to any representative of the Attorney General's office
of the State of Texas?
A I still claim my privilege, sir, the same

privilege.

Q Have you spoken to any officer of the Internal

Revenue Service of the United States?

A I still claim my privilege, sir.

Q Have you spoken to any representative of the
United States Attorney General's office?

A I still claim my same privilege.

Q How are you politically aligned with Judge
Carrillo?

A I still claim the same privilege.

MR, CHAVEZ: Mr., Chairman, would you be

inclined at some time to determine whether or not this
witness might be considered to be in contempt of the

Committee or the House?
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CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Chavez, the Chair
wouldn't think there would be any possible contempi
as loﬁg as he refuses to answer on the grounds that his
ansvers might tend to incriminate him. I think we

would have no basis for a contempt proceeding then.

That is his right to do that.

"MR, CHAVEZ: Even iIf he has in fsct given
testimony to some investigative body and waived that
privilege?

CHAIRMAN HALE: I think it is immaterial,
I think he has the right to claim his ptivilegq under
the Fifth Amendment regardless.

MR. CHAVEZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Are there any other
questions? |

Mr. Canales?
BY MR. CANALES
Q Mr. Couling, do you know what my name is?
A I atill claim the same privilege, sir. Oh,
Mr. Canales.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Canales, let the
Chair say as & sidebar remark, knowing you might
ilncriminate somebody here tonight.

Q Mr.lcbuling, not saying that you know the

Sheriff of Duval County, but do you know what the name of
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the Sheriff of Duval County is?
A Yes.
Q Would you tell the Committee what the name of

the Sheriff of Duval County is?

A Raul Serna.

Q Do you know a8 Mr., Clinton Mangus from Freer,
Texas?

A I claim the same privilege.

Q It would incriminate you to admit that you

know Mr. Clinton Mangus?
A I claim the same privilege.

MR. CANALES: Mr., Chairman, I have no
further questions.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine.

Any further questions from any members of the
Committee?

(No respobse.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: Mr. Couling, we appreciate
you being here before the Committee. We recognize your
situation.

Mr. Orr, thank you for appearing before the
Committee. Let the Chair state that you are obviously
doing a very able job for your client.

MR. ORR: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CANALES: Mr. Chairman, I think we
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hit 12:00 o'cloeck on the nose, unless the Committee
would like to hear my next witness,

CHAIRMAN HALE: Fine. No, I don't think
we '11 undertake another witness tonight.

(The witness, Rodolfo M., Couling, was
excused.)

CHAIRMAN HALE: We appreciate all of you

in the audience. You have been very attentive aad

very orderly. We're glad to have you at these hzarings

as long as this type of decorum prevails. The Chair
apologizes for getting the meeting started late tonight,
but it was beyond our control, as many of you probably
know from watching the House session,

We will resume this at 8:00 o'clock tomorrow

night.

MR. NABERS: Can we start it at 7:00
o'clock?

CHAIRMAN HALE: Do you want to change it
to 7:007

MR, NABERS; Yes, sir,

MR. DONALDSON: Change 1t to 6:00. Let's
start at 6:00 and stop at 10:00.

MR. NABERS: Let's start at 7:00.

CHAIRMAN HALE: Let's take a show of hands

on it. How many on the Committee would prefer to start
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at 6:00 o'clock? We'll start at 6:00. Oae, two.
How many would prefer to start at 7:007 Three.
How many would prefer to start at 8:00? irhrce.
We've got 2 pretty general assortment here. |
How about 7:307 |
MR. SLACK: I soc move.
CRAIRMAN HALE: Okay. 7:30 then. Mr. |
Slack moves the Committee stand recessed until 7:30
p.m. tomorrow night, or until the call of the Chair,
whichever is earlier. 1Is there objection?
The Chair hears nome. We'll stand in recess.
(Whereupon, at 12:05 a.m., the Conmittee
was racessed to reconvene on Thursday, May 22, 1975, at

7:30 o'clock p.m.)
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